
G:\City Administration\City Administration\Agendas\Agendas 2024\city council\20240404\20240404 CC AGENDA.doc  1 

Upcoming City Council Meetings   April 18th  & May 2nd  

AGENDA FOR THE REGULAR MEETING 
DUNSMUIR CITY COUNCIL 

April 4th , 2024 
REGULAR SESSION:  6:00 pm 

Join Zoom Meeting: https://us02web.zoom.us/j/84424135442 
Or Call: +1 669 900 6833  

Enter Meeting ID: 844 2413 5442 

As a courtesy, please turn off cell phones and electronic devices while the meeting is in session.  Thank you. 

1. CALL TO ORDER  AND FLAG SALUTE
2. ROLL CALL
3. SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS AND ANNOUNCEMENTS
4. PUBLIC COMMENT

Regular City Council meetings are posted on the City’s website to keep City residents
informed of City Council actions and deliberations that affect the community. Meetings are
scheduled to be televised on the 1st and 3rd Thursday of each month.  Meetings that take place
on dates other than the 1st and 3rd Thursday will not be televised.
This time is set aside for citizens to address the City Council on matters listed on the Consent
Agenda as well as other items not included on the Regular Agenda.  If your comments
concern an item noted on the Regular Agenda, please address the Council when that item is
open for public comment. Each speaker is allocated three (3) minutes to speak. Speakers
may not cede their time to another speaker. Comments should be limited to matters within
the jurisdiction of the City. Speaker forms are available from the City Clerk, 5915 Dunsmuir
Ave, Dunsmuir, on the City’s website, or on the podium. The City Council can only take
action on matters that are on the Agenda, but may place matters brought to their attention at
this meeting on a future Agenda for consideration. If you have documents to present to
members of the City Council, please provide a minimum of seven (7) copies.

5. COUNCIL AND STAFF COMMENTS
6. COMMITTEE REPORTS
7. APPROVAL OF MINUTES –

A. Special Meeting Minutes of 3/5/24
B. Regular Meeting Minutes of 3/21/24

8. CONSENT AGENDA:
A. Check Register: 3/16-3/29/24

9. PUBLIC HEARING:  NONE
10. OLD BUSINESS

A. RFP of On-Call Planning Services
11. NEW BUSINESS

A. RFP for HR Consultant
B. SB1 Road Maintenance and Rehabilitation Account Funding- Resolution #. 2024-03

to Adopt a Project list to Receive SB1 funding in FY 2024/2025.

1

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/84424135442


G:\City Administration\City Administration\Agendas\Agendas 2024\city council\20240404\20240404 CC AGENDA.doc  2 

12.  FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 
   Future Agenda Items are topics brought to the City Council for review and/or 
action.  All dates refer to first introductions and can be altered due to time and      
priority levels. 

• Fireworks Ordinance
• Historic Commission Reformation and/or Review
• Cannabis Ordinance
• Land Acknowledgement
• Special Event Ordinance
• Snow Removal Policy
• Public Works Building Bid Documents
• Library – (County is no longer funding the Library much)
• QR codes and Landing Page for Downtown WiFi
• Plan for Special Historic District

13.  ADJOURNMENT 

Copies of this agenda were posted at City Hall, Dunsmuir City Library, and City Website 
72 hrs. prior to meeting time. 

The City of Dunsmuir does not discriminate on the basis of race, color, national origin, religion, age, gender, 
sexual orientation, disability or any other legally protected classes in employment or provision of services.  
Persons who need accommodations for a disability at a public meeting may call City Hall at (530) 235-4822 
for assistance.  Notification 48 hours prior to the meeting will enable the City to make reasonable 
arrangements to accommodate participation in the meeting. 

CERTIFICATION 

This is the official Dunsmuir City Council Agenda, created and posted in accordance with the 
Dunsmuir City Council Protocols. 

________________________________________ _________________ 
Wendy Perkins, Deputy City Clerk Date 

2



1 

CITY OF DUNSMUIR 
SPECAIL CITY COUNCIL MEETING  MINUTES 

March 5th, 2024 
CALL TO ORDER AND FLAG SALUTE: 
Meeting was called to order @ 6 pm by Mayor Clarno 
ROLL CALL: 
Council members present:  Keisler, Deutsch, Bryan, Lucchesi, Clarno 
City staff present:  City Manager Rief, Finance Director Michaelsen 
PUBLIC COMMENT on CLOSED SESSION ITEM 
Leshefsky says the whole process seems barbaric, like a public lynching. 
Skalko wants to be sure all sides are being heard and personal feelings set aside. 
Jim Cook Makes some supportive comments toward the hard-working, long-time employee of 
City of Dunsmuir, Brian Wilson.  
Anan Mulvaney  makes some supportive comments of the home grown employee. 
STAFF/COUNCIL 
Council members Bryan and Keisler recused themselves. 
ADJOURN TO CLOSED SESSION  
A. Discipline/Dismissal/Release of Employee, Employee Appeal of Termination.
(Gov. Code Section 54957)
REPORT BACK FROM CLOSED SESSION
Council upheld the dismissal of employee. Pursuant to Rule X, Section 5c) (Insubordination,
constituting a serious breach of discipline) of the MOU with OE3.
Voting 3-0-0-0 with 2 Recused. AYES: Lucchesi, Deutsch, Clarno NOES: NONE ABSENT: NONE
ABSTAIN: NONE
Council members Bryan and Keisler recused themselves from closed session.
Public Comment (After returning from Closed Session):
Manya Bryan: Real harassment took place. There was a hostile work environment on both
sides. Wants a better process for employees, this was a terrible process. Both sides lost.
Tony Congi: Wants to thank council for their listening open eared. Staff had no reason to lie.
Glad Council was able to make proper decision.
Dennis Dellabona: Decisions you make dictate the life you live. Council is a representation of
City and believes they made a proper decision to protect citizens of Dunsmuir.
FINAL ADJOURNMENT @ 12:30 a.m. the following day (3/6)

 _____________________________ 
  Mayor Clarno 

ATTEST: 

___________________________ 
Deputy City Clerk Perkins 

3



\\cod-fs\ch-docs\City Administration\City Administration\MINUTES\City Council\2024 City Council Minutes\20240321 CC MINUTES.docx 1 

CITY OF DUNSMUIR 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES 

March 21st, 2024 

CALL TO ORDER AND FLAG SALUTE: 
Meeting was called to order @ 6 pm by Mayor Clarno 
ROLL CALL: 
Council members present:   Lucchesi, Keisler, Deutsch,  Bryan, Clarno 
City staff present:  City Manager Rief, Deputy City Clerk Perkins, Finance Director Michaelsen 
SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS AND ANNOUCEMENTS 

A. Proclamation Against Child Abuse - Allison Schull presents

B. PlanWest Partners Status of 2023-2031 Housing Element Update and Next Steps
Michelle Nielsen of PlanWest makes a short presentation and announces there will be a
workshop March 28th at 5 p.m.. April 10th there will be a planning commission public
hearing. April 26th Submit adopted housing element HCD.

Deutsch asks what progress has been made since the last meeting.

There’s been a public workshop and consulting with the other Planner and the city and
meetings with HCD, putting together an AFFH program action plan that will fit resources
which are available at the city.

PUBLIC COMMENT 
Open at 6:16 p.m. 
Debbie Spagnolo  wanted to address a few things about her towed car. She asks why she isn’t 
on the agenda. She is concerned that the abatement procedures were not followed. 
Arth – Wants to address item 12 the future agenda item, specifically the historic district 
reformation. Thinks the other item “plan for Special Historic District” is overlapped with the 
“historic commission reformation and/or review”. Wants to address the fact that four windows 
within the Historic Weed/Dunsmuir Hotel are all blown out. 
COUNCIL AND STAFF COMMENTS 
Ortiz – Gives a general update on sheriff’s office service hours. 154 calls for service. 13 cases. 11 
alarms. 21 traffic stops. Everyone is for the most part behaving themselves. 
City Manager Rief – Met with garden club and high school regarding transition of park and 
recreation maintenance services.  They will be including owners of Cave Springs LLC to discuss 
Community Building and Botanical Garden rentals. Cave Springs is in proximity to the parks and 
community resources. City has received dogwood trees which were paid for by the Amtrak 
contractor. Will be installing in next few weeks. City hall replacement door is scheduled for 
shipment next week. 
Deutsch – April 20th 9-2:30 “Building Dunsmuir’s Future” event. Will be coming up with things 
that the community can come together and do. 2nd annual volunteer faire May 19th, 1-4, a 
Sunday. 

4



\\cod-fs\ch-docs\City Administration\City Administration\MINUTES\City Council\2024 City Council Minutes\20240321 CC MINUTES.docx  2 

Lucchesi – Planning Grant has launched working on preparing application. Working on the 
grants that can be used to hire a historic architect to develop historic guidelines. Make grants 
available for business to maintain their historic character. 
Bryan -  nothing to share 
Clarno Encourage community to attend Housing Element Update community workshop. 
Keisler -  Easter egg hunt Saturday.  Still time to contribute. Rotary golf tournament coming up 
in April 27th. Proceeds go to the backpack program for elementary school kids. Movie which was 
made in Dunsmuir is showing in the area “Peter 5 8”. Go watch it Friday at Mt. Shasta Theatre.  
COMMITEE REPORTS 
Finance Committee met – Reviewed year to date budget. Excited to see TOT really outperform 
our expectations. Law enforcement costs are looking to stay same for 5 years. Reviewed the 
solid waste committee consultants. Considering taking a parking fee for those that park at 
Hedge Creek. Can use it as a driver of our economics. Discuss need for Mossbrae Trail for the 
city’s economics. Look at the recreation and parks budget but was difficult because didn’t have 
all the details on the finances. Need better data on the full financial review. Emergency help 
was promised. Finance committee doesn’t have real numbers that say it wouldn’t be a real 
danger to the town. 
Clarno - Wants FD to break out the budget on our spending on the parks. Can analyze the costs 
which are occurring at Hedge Creek Falls, which has always been under city’s control. 
Discussed Recreation and parks District possibility of programming. 
Sheriffs Committee met today – Assessment of facilities and operations, challenges and future 
needs. 
Muni Ad Hoc Committee met outlined ordinance that need to be looked at and revised. Lots of 
code enforcement issues to revise. Lots of case study options. Lots of problems with definitions 
and conflicting codes, animals, other things which need to get cleaned up. Had to prioritize and 
start with a small list to start.  
APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
A. Joint Meeting of 2/22/24 with Dunsmuir Recreation & Park Board 
B. 3/7/24 City Council Meeting 
Motion to approve  joint meeting minutes by   Keisler     , 2nd by  Deutsch 
Motion to approve  3/7/24  minutes by  Keisler   , 2nd by  Deutsch 
Voice Vote: 
   AYES: Lucchesi, Keisler, Deutsch,  Bryan, Clarno  
   NOES:  None 
   ABSENT:  None 
   ABSTAIN:  None  
CONSENT AGENDA 
Check Register : 3/2-3/15/2024 

5



\\cod-fs\ch-docs\City Administration\City Administration\MINUTES\City Council\2024 City Council Minutes\20240321 CC MINUTES.docx  3 

Motion to adopt consent agenda by  Keisler     , 2nd by Lucchesi 
 
Voice  Vote:  AYES:  Lucchesi, Keisler, Deutsch,  Bryan, Clarno 
   NOES:  None 
   ABSENT:  None 
   ABSTAIN:  None 
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS: NONE 
OLD BUSINESS: 
A. Amendment to Sheriff’s Contract 

Rief gives a brief explanation of the extension. County has finally gotten the document with 
their preferred language. 
Public comment open at 6:45 - None 
 

Motion by      Lucchesi          2nd   by    Keisler             to amend Sheriff contract and authorize 
mayor and city manager to execute amendment. 
 
Voice  Vote:  AYES:  Lucchesi, Keisler, Deutsch,  Bryan, Clarno 

NOES:  None 
ABSENT:  None 
ABSTAIN:  None 

NEW BUSINESS: 
A. General Plan and Housing Element Annual Progress Report 
Resolution 2024-02 Receive and File 2023 General Plan and Housing Element Annual Progress 
Reports and Authorize the Transmittal to the Office of Planning and Research and the California 
Department of Housing and Community Development.  
 
Kelsey George gives background on the General Plan Annual Progress Report legal process. 
 
Which includes the Housing Element. Update must be submitted to legislative bodies, the 
Governor’s office of Planning and Research (OPR) and Housing and Community Development 
(HCD) every April. City has kicked off Dunsmuir Downtown Revitalization Strategy and Plan. This 
is for the 2023 calendar year. 
Public Comment Open at 6:56 p.m. 
Arth – Sees there were plenty of opportunities for the public to speak regarding the progress 
and development of Dunsmuir. He was pleased to see that veterans housing got at least one 
bullet point on PlanWest Partners Housing Element Update. When city council submits its plan 
to state of California, we commit to State we’ll due 5 units of housing and that’s all? It’s not a 
good use of citizen time to be listened to and then ignored. Thinks you’ll get the same couple of 
people in community involved and you’ll get the same annual report.  
Spagnolo – Wants to know if she can see this annual progress report can be viewed online or 
within city hall? 
 

6



\\cod-fs\ch-docs\City Administration\City Administration\MINUTES\City Council\2024 City Council Minutes\20240321 CC MINUTES.docx  4 

Motion by   Lucchesi     2d by  Keisler    to adopt Resolution 2024-02 to receive and file the 2023 
General Plan Annual Progress Report and the 2023 Housing Element Annual Progress Report 
and authorize the transmittal of the report to the Governor’s Office of Planning and Research 
and the California Department of Housing and Community Development. 
 
Voice Vote:  AYES:  Lucchesi, Keisler, Deutsch,  Bryan, Clarno 
   NOES:  None 
   ABSENT: None 
   ABSTAIN:  None 

 
B. Collection System Project – Consideration to Award Construction Bid 
City manager Rief reports Cox and Cox is the lowest qualified bidder on the project for 8 
million. This amount is outside of our allocation of 6 million. This is a clean water SRF grant in 
progress since 2016. City engineering consultants recommend that city council approve bid and 
seek additional funding. 
Discussion : Regarding private land owners lateral replacement and that is not included in this 
cost at this time. The nature of ownership of laterals. Customer owns lateral to the connection 
point within the street (not necessarily the curb).  
Public comment open at 7:11 p.m. 
Spagnolo – Wants to know if it’s for every sewer lateral. Moved here when the were just 
putting in new laterals about 36 years ago. 
Fred Taylor – Hasn't heard any resolution to his legal fee issue. 
Clarno – Tells Fred this is not the correct item to address this issue. 
Rief /Dellabona– lateral component that city would look at would only include the project area 
which is north Dunsmuir Caldwell , Isgrigg, Holly, part of Gleaves, Prospect area, part of Shasta 
View, Hemlock, Ash Street to Childrens park, Grover. There’s about 1000 feet of sewer lining 
that needs replacement.   
 
Motion by   Lucchesi    2nd by Keisler   to award contract to winning bidder. 
Lucchesi wants to amend motion to include “pending additional funding with federal partners”  
Keisler 2nds the amended motion. 
 
Roll Call  Vote:  AYES:  Lucchesi, Keisler, Deutsch,  Bryan, Clarno 

NOES:  None 
ABSENT:  None 
ABSTAIN:  None 

 
C. Public Works Shop Relocation Budget Amendment 
 

City Manager Rief introduces the item. This amendment will cover engineering work to get 
building plans and bid documents prepared in preparation to find financing for the project . 
Staff has met with multiple financing entities and is preparing to move forward. 
Public comment open at 7:24 p.m. None 

7



\\cod-fs\ch-docs\City Administration\City Administration\MINUTES\City Council\2024 City Council Minutes\20240321 CC MINUTES.docx  5 

 
Discussion: Lucchesi would like to refer the item to the Finance Committee, concern about 
the deficit will cause. How will it impact the budget of the operational year? 
 
Motion by Lucchesi to refer item to Finance Committee . No 2nd Dies.    
 
Motion by   Keisler     2nd by  Lucchesi         to amend budget line item 10-514-8250.01 up 
$30,000 from $175,000 to $205,000 

 
Roll Call  Vote:  AYES:  Lucchesi, Keisler, Deutsch,  Bryan, Clarno 

NOES:  None 
ABSENT:  None 
ABSTAIN:  None 

 
FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 
• Historic Commission Reformation and/or Review 
• Fireworks Ordinance – add back in 
• Cannabis Ordinance 
• Land Acknowledgement 
• Special Event Ordinance 
• Snow Removal Policy 
• RFP for Planning 
• Public Works Building Bid Documents 
• RFP for Third Party HR consultant 
• Library – (County is no longer funding the Library much) 
• QR codes and Landing Page for Downtown WiFi 
• Plan for Special Historic District 
 
ADJOURNMENT at 7:31 p.m. 
 
 
 
                _____________________________ 
                                                                                          Mayor Clarno 
ATTEST: 
 
 
___________________________ 
Deputy City Clerk Perkins 
 

8



City of Dunsmuir

Check Register Report

Check 
Date

Check 
Number

Status Amount

BANK: 

Vendor 
Number

Vendor Name Check Description

U.S. BANK 1Page:
11:06 amTime:

03/29/2024Date:

Void/Stop 
Date

Reconcile 
Date

U.S. BANK Checks

20.00Flat repair John Deer TractorANTHONY CATLETT9885Printed03/22/202458758

35,967.89bond counsel file1485.003MEYERS NAVE10904Printed03/22/202458759

379.46couplerNAPA47520Printed03/22/202458760

468.00drinking wa weekly 24C0363PACE ANALYTICAL SERVICES, 
LLC

10753Printed03/22/202458761

2,011.54street lights 63601721-015 5PACIFIC POWER39015Printed03/22/202458762

24.34Mott lights63601721-0171PACIFIC POWER39015Printed03/22/202458763
12.62willow st i-5 overcrossingPACIFIC POWER39015Printed03/22/202458764

1,799.00online license agreementPARCEL QUEST10331Printed03/22/202458765

280.1524/25 Dog license TagsPATRICK & CO39062Printed03/22/202458766

690.00Return overpaymentPICK N PULL10784Printed03/22/202458767
10,732.53Dec. 23 and Jan 24 HousingPLANWEST PARTNERS INC10835Printed03/22/202458768

50.50chain loop, files, engine oilRAMSHAW'S ACE HARDWARE44240Printed03/22/202458769

9,493.50Legal services and abatementSILVER & WRIGHT LLP10879Printed03/22/202458770

7,871.68credit car purchase March24US BANK CORP PAYMENT 
SYSTEMS

53813Printed03/22/202458771

80.00flat repair backhoe tiresANTHONY CATLETT9885Printed03/29/202458772

226.96tubline hydraulicBOBCAT OF REDDING 10858Printed03/29/202458773
132.00March 2024 CleaningREBECCA CATLETT 5325Printed03/29/202458774

31,160.41Dunsmuir ATP 4-440CIVICWELL10783Printed03/29/202458775

28,582.67Refuse contract March2024CLEMENS WASTE REMOVAL6325Printed03/29/202458776

90.001st qtr phone 2024ANTHONY CONGI 6630Printed03/29/202458777
5,635.33snowplow blade, cutting edgeENOVEN MANUFACTURING INC10905Printed03/29/202458778

577.82gardvisor, gard headgearFASTENAL COMPANY9303Printed03/29/202458779

1,384.73gasket coup, 15 N12marmac repFERGUSON ENTERPRISES 
INC,1423

5219Printed03/29/202458780

3,580.1420-CDBG-CV2-3-00050GREAT NORTHERN CORP.17310Printed03/29/202458781

989.88sulfur dioxide, with creditJCI JONES CHEMICALS, INC.10848Printed03/29/202458782
353.00stephan schmidt, 726589-QCSH1MERCY MEDICAL CENTER33132Printed03/29/202458783

10.14twd wheel lug nut coverNAPA47520Printed03/29/202458784

1,180.48Fire assessmentNBS GOVERNMENT FINANCE 
GROUP

10730Printed03/29/202458785

51.42battery 12vNORTH VALLEY DISTRIBUTING9999992088Printed03/29/202458786

1,320.87ww weekly 24C0362PACE ANALYTICAL SERVICES, 
LLC

10753Printed03/29/202458787

299.70river ave sewage liftPACIFIC POWER39015Printed03/29/202458788

21.38high school water storagePACIFIC POWER39015Printed03/29/202458789

50.00March 2024 TreasurerMARIO J. RUBINO 45110Printed03/29/202458790
1,376.3850# Soda Ash lite,100# drytecSCP POOL CORP10543Printed03/29/202458791

4,400.25Bat habitat Jan-March24STILLWATER ECOSYSTEM,10888Printed03/29/202458792

8,946.61chlorine 150# cyl gasTHATCHER COMPANY10503Printed03/29/202458793

522.94sopper sulfate-sulfamic acidUSA BLUE BOOK, INC53806Printed03/29/202458794
3,131.04Fuel March 2024WEX BANK10752Printed03/29/202458795

748.20dump and return roll offYREKA TRANSFER COMPANY60005Printed03/29/202458796

164,653.56Checks Total (excluding void checks):39Total Checks:

164,653.56Bank Total (excluding void checks):39Total Payments:

Grand Total (excluding void checks):Total Payments: 39 164,653.56

9



  Page 1  

City of Dunsmuir 
 
 
 

STAFF REPORT 

RE:   Approve RFP of On-Call Planning Services MEETING DATE:   April 4, 2024 

SUBMITTED BY:   Dustin J. Rief, City Manager 

PURPOSE OF REPORT:        Information only       Discussion      Action Item 

 

WHAT IS BEING ASKED OF THE CITY COUNCIL: To Approve the RFP for on-call Planning services 

BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION:  In November 2023 the City Received the resignation of the previous contract 
planner and is currently working with an interim contract planner. Attached is an Request for Proposals (RFP) for 
permanent contract planning services. The projected timeline for this project is as follows: 

April 5: Publish the Planning services RFP 

May 3, at 4:00 PM: Proposals are due 

June 20: Council Approval Planning Services Professional Services Agreement 

OPTIONS: Approve 

Modify and Approve 

Continue with Interim Services 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

 None  

Comments:  

Staff Recommends approval of the RFP for publication 

SUGGESTED MOTIONS: Motion to Approve the RFP for On-Call Planning Services 

 

    Attachments:  
On Call Planning 
Services RFP 

 

  

10



Page 1 of 9 
 

Request for Proposals 
 

On-Call Planning and Environmental 
Consulting Services 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Contact: Dustin Rief, City Manager 
530-235-4822 ext 103 

Preferred: citymanager@ci.dunsmuir.ca.us 
 

Key RFP Dates  
Issued: April 5, 2024 

Proposals Due: May 3, 2024 at 4:00 PM PST 

11



Page 2 of 9 
 

Section 1. Project Overview 

The City of Dunsmuir (hereinafter referred to as the “City”) is seeking proposals from qualified 
firms to enter into a Multi-Year Professional Services Agreement to perform professional 
planning and environmental services on an “on-call” basis. The City is requesting proposals 
from persons or firms with the expertise necessary to process development applications for 
residential, commercial, industrial, and mixed-use development projects; application of 
California Environmental Quality Act; development and management of planning grants; and 
conformance with federal, state, and local regulations. The selected consultant may also 
facilitate, lead, or assist planning staff with long-range planning initiatives such as General 
Plan and Master Plan updates. The Professional Services Agreement is expected to serve for 
a total of five (5) years with an option of an automatic two-year extension based on work 
performance and workflow needs.  

Background 

The City of Dunsmuir is located in Southern Siskiyou County. One of nine incorporated cities, 
Dunsmuir averages approximately 1700 residents over the last decade. Five miles long and an 
average quarter-mile wide, Dunsmuir is set against a mountainous backdrop in the steep-
walled Sacramento River Canyon. A small. Historic downtown and small residential lots give 
the city a rural small-town character. The downtown is home to restaurants, hotels, small 
businesses, community services, and the landmark California Theater. The City of Dunsmuir 
hosts an Amtrak Station with daily service on the Coast Starlight line. The Amtrak station is 
located on the Union Pacific Railroad yard with an active change-out point for Union Pacific 
freight trains.  

Dunsmuir Avenue – the City’s main arterial and Interstate 5 cross the Sacramento River with 
adjacent bridges approximately 1/8-mile long and several hundred feet above the river valley. 
The Dunsmuir Avenue bridge divides the city north and south. Travel in the northerly direction 
on Dunsmuir Avenue throughout the city is consistently uphill.  

Development within the City is slow to non-existent with the majority of planning projects 
being instigated by the City. The City owns and manages several acres of land throughout the 
City including a municipal airport; Mott Airport in the northern most portion of the city. The 
majority of building and planning projects involve remodeling and infill projects. Residential 
development in southern Dunsmuir sits on steep grades sloping from Interstate 5 to the 
railroad and the river near the bottom of the canyon. Residential development north of the 
bridge is mainly east of the river and west of Interstate 5, on a gently slope set above the river.  

Currently, the city has no dedicated general Planning staff. The role of city planner has been 
held by a number of contractors throughout the years. The city does employ a Hazard 
Resilience Planner funded through the California Office of Emergency Services (CalOES) for a 
five-year term and one Building Official on contract part-time. The city operates under a City 

12



Page 3 of 9 
 

Council-City Manager form of government. The City Manager will be the direct contact for 
the awarded on-call planning and environmental services contractor.  

Scope of Services 

Under the direction of the Planning Director or City Manager, the consultant will provide the 
range of expertise necessary to carry out the normal functions of a professional planner and 
planning department. All services provided by the consultant shall be performed by 
individuals who meet the qualifications, education, and certifications/licensing requirements 
for the professional Planning levels of the specified task. On-site work may be necessary from 
time to time to attend meetings or to perform some of the services described below.  

Task and services to be assigned by city staff include, but not limited to: 

General Department Work 

• Provide qualified and experienced staff to provide planning services and address 
planning and environmental-related staff questions; 

• Provide application processing services, including meetings with applicants; preparing 
plans for completeness and compliance with local and state guidelines development 
standards; prospering staff reports and making presentations; and coordinating with 
other city departments and outside agencies; 

• Assist with updates and creation of long-term and short-terms plans including General 
Plan updates, ordinance updates, and master plans to meet city and state goals; 

• Attend City Council, Planning Commission, and other meetings as necessary to 
provide information and analysis to the City’s decision-makers; 

• Provide development processing, plan and map checking, and on-site inspection for 
all new development activity, when needed; and 

• Assist with planning special projects which may include grant preparation, grant 
management, and project management.  

Training 

• Provide planning and environmental training for city staff, City Council, and Planning 
Commission to familiarize these parties with planning and environmental regulation, 
laws, and best practices.  

Environmental Services 

• Prepare minor environmental determinations as required to comply with state and 
federal law for public and private projects being processed by the city; 

• Environmental clearance and permitting for city projects as needed; 

• Provide environmental on-site inspections and field surveys; 

13



Page 4 of 9 
 

• Provide oversight, management, and preparation of all environmental documents to 
be prepared by outside consultants; and  

• Provide long-term monitoring and reporting to ensure compliance with mitigation 
monitoring programs. 

Housing Services 

• Assist with development of housing policies and programs, implementation of 
housing programs and development of affordable housing projects. 

Section 2 RFP Submittal Requirements 

Eligibility 

This RFP is open to all interested firms. Firms must certify in a cover letter that it meets the 
following conditions: 

1. Is not in litigation that may have a significant and adverse impact on the ability to 
perform services for the City of Dunsmuir. 

2. Has the resources, expertise, and commitment to complete all components of the 
project in a timely and competent manner. 

3. City of Dunsmuir requires that the professional who signs the proposal as the project 
manager certify that they will be present at all meetings requested by the staff 
members and will fully participate in the day-to-day management of the contract. 

The proposal should not exceed 24 total written pages (excluding cover letter, proposal cover, 
table of contents, and supplemental information, such as resumes, insurance, and the 
statement of modifications). Supplemental information and appendices should be relevant 
and brief. Proposals shall be organized using the following format: 

1. Cover Letter: Identify the prime consultant and describe any subcontract 
arrangements. Please identify the person who is authorized to negotiate for the team 
and indicate that the proposal represents a firm binding offer for 90 days. The cover 
letter should also summarize the key points of the consulting firms’ interests, 
qualifications, and pertinent areas of expertise.  

2. Key Staff: Identify a single point of contact (project manager) and all key team 
members, including relevant experience. Provide an organization chart of how the key 
staff is structured within the organization and include all specialty sub-consultants that 
would be expected to be utilized on the project. 

3. Scope of Services: Description of the services to be offered by the firm and those 
offered by subcontractors typically used by the firm. The proposal must indicate which 
services are provided by whom.  

4. Relevant Experience: List projects completed by the Consultant relevant to the scope 
of services contained herein that have been completed in the last five years. Discuss 

14



Page 5 of 9 
 

the firm’s uniqueness to best perform these on-call services for the city.  
5. Current Clients: Provide a list of all clients doing business with the Consultant in the 

past 12 months. 
6. Billing Structure: Provide a list of hourly billing rates for each proposed team member. 

Include all direct and indirect expenses and transportation fees. 
7. Statement of Proposed Modification: Attached are the City’s standard Professional 

Services Agreement (PSA) and insurance requirements. If the respondent has any 
modifications to the standard PSA or Insurance requirements, provide a statement of 
proposed modifications and/or exceptions to the PSA. Any modifications not included 
in this Statement may not be considered by the city. 

8. Insurance: Provide a summary of insurance coverage including public liability, 
property damage, workers compensation, automobile, and professional liability. An 
example of the city’s insurance requirements is provided in Exhibit B.  

9. References: Provide three (3) client references relevant to the scope of services listed 
herein. Include names, titles, and current contact information.  

Appendices 

Information considered by proposers to be pertinent to this project, and which has not been 
specifically solicited in any of the aforementioned sections, may be placed in a separate 
appendix section. Proposers are cautioned, however, that this does not constitute an 
invitation to submit large amounts of extraneous materials. Appendices should be relevant 
and brief. 

Non-Discrimination Certification 

By responding to this RFP, proposers represent that they and their subsidiaries do not and will 
not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment on the basis of race, 
religious creed, color, national origin, ancestry, physical disability, mental disability, medical 
condition, genetic information, marital status, sex, gender, gender identity, gender 
expression, age, sexual orientation, or military or veteran status. 

Addenda 

Any changes to the requirements will be made by written addendum to this RFP. Any written 
addenda issued pertaining to this RFP shall be incorporated into the terms and conditions of 
any resulting agreement. The City of Dunsmuir will not be bound to any modifications to or 
deviations from the requirements set forth in this RFP as the result of verbal instructions. 
Proposers are responsible for checking the City of Dunsmuir website 
https://www.ci.dunsmuir.ca.us/news  for any and all written Addenda related to this RFP. The 
City of Dunsmuir will not distribute Addenda to a mailing list of interested proposers. 

 

15

https://www.ci.dunsmuir.ca.us/news


Page 6 of 9 
 

Submittal Procedures 

Proposals must be submitted at or before 4:00 P.M. on May 3, 2024. An electronic copy of 
the proposal in PDF format should be delivered by email to the following address: 
citymanager@ci.dunsmuir.ca.us with the email subject: City of Dunsmuir On-Call Planning 
and Environmental Proposal  

Proposals received after the date and time specified above will not be considered.    

The City of Dunsmuir reserves the right to: 

1. Accept, reject any or all submittals, or any item or part thereof; 
2. Issue subsequent Requests for Proposals; 
3. Alter the Selection Process Dates; 

4. Remedy technical errors in the RFP process; 
5. Request additional information from Proposers and investigate the qualifications of all 

firms under consideration; 
6. Confirm any part of the information furnished by a Proposer; 
7. Obtain additional evidence of managerial, financial, or other capabilities; 
8. Approve or disapprove the use of particular subcontractors; 
9. Negotiate with any, all, or none of the Proposers; 
10. Award a contract to one or more Proposers; 
11. Accept other than the lowest-priced Proposal; 
12. Solicit best and final offers from all of some of the Proposers; 
13. Withdraw this RFP at any time without prior notice, and the City of Dunsmuir makes no 

representations that any contract will be awarded to any Proposer responding to this 
RFP; 

14. Waive informalities and irregularities in Proposals or the selection process. 

Confidentiality of Proposals 

To the extent permitted by law, proposals received shall remain confidential until the contract, 
if any, resulting from this RFP has been finally executed. Thereafter, all information submitted 
in response to this request shall be deemed public record. In the event that the Proposer 
desires to claim portions of its proposal as exempt from disclosure under the California Public 
Records Act, it is incumbent on the Proposer to clearly identify those portions with the word 
“confidential” printed on the lower right-hand corner of the page. City of Dunsmuir will 
consider a Proposer’s request for exemption from disclosure; however, the City of Dunsmuir 
will make its decision based on applicable laws. An assertion by the Proposer that the entire 
proposal is exempt from disclosure will not be honored. Firms are advised that the City of 
Dunsmuir does not wish to receive confidential or proprietary information and those proposers 
are not to supply such information except when it is absolutely necessary. If any information or 
materials in any proposal submitted are labeled confidential or proprietary, the proposal shall 

16

mailto:citymanager@ci.dunsmuir.ca.us


Page 7 of 9 
 

include the following clause: 

[Legal name of proposer] shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless the City of 
Dunsmuir, its officers, agents and employees from and against any request, 
action or proceeding of any nature and any damages or liability of any nature, 
specifically including attorneys’ fees awarded under the California Public 
Records Act (Government Code § 6250 et seq.) arising out of , concerning or in 
any way involving any materials or information in this proposal that [legal 
name of proposer] has labeled as confidential, proprietary or otherwise not 
subject to disclosure as a public record. 

Pre-Contractual Expenses 

The City of Dunsmuir shall not, in any event, be liable for any pre-contractual expenses 
incurred by Proposer in the preparation of its proposal. Proposer shall not include any such 
expenses as part of its proposal. Pre-contractual expenses are defined as expenses incurred by 
Proposer in: 

1. Preparing its proposal in response to this RFP; 
2. Submitting that proposal to the City of Dunsmuir; 
3. Negotiating with the City of Dunsmuir any matter related to this proposal; or 
4. Any other expenses incurred by Proposer prior to date of award, if any of the 

Agreement. 

Insurance and Agreement Provisions 

The Proposer must satisfy the insurance requirements of the City (Exhibit B). Objections to 
any provisions must be identified in the proposal. If no objections are made, this will signify 
that the insurance requirements and agreement are acceptable as written. Unless otherwise 
authorized by the City of Dunsmuir, the selected consultant will be required to execute an 
agreement with the City of Dunsmuir for the services requested. If agreement on terms and 
conditions acceptable to the City of Dunsmuir cannot be achieved, or if, after reasonable 
attempts to negotiate such terms and conditions, it appears that an agreement will not be 
possible, as determined at the sole discretion of the City of Dunsmuir, the City of Dunsmuir 
reserves the right to retract any notice of intent to award and proceed with awards to other 
consultants, or not award at all. 

Lobbying 

Any consulting firm submitting a proposal, or a party representing a firm, shall not influence 
or attempt to influence any member of the evaluation committee, any member of a city 
council within the City of Dunsmuir, or any employee of the City, with regard to the 
acceptance of a proposal. Any party attempting to influence the RFP process through ex-parte 
contact shall be subject to rejection of their proposal. 

  

17



Page 8 of 9 
 

Section 3. Evaluation and Award 

An Evaluation Committee will review all proposals received. The committee includes City of 
Dunsmuir staff and may include outside personnel. The City of Dunsmuir staff will conduct an 
initial review of the proposals for general responsiveness and compliance with the 
requirements of this RFP. Proposals failing to satisfy the requirements or which are 
inadequately responsive will not be considered. 

After the initial responsiveness review, the committee members will read the proposals 
separately then convene to discuss and review the written proposals. Each member of the 
selection panel will then evaluate each proposal using the criteria identified below to arrive at 
a “proposal score” in the range of 0 to 100 for each proposal. A list of top ranked proposals will 
be developed based upon the totals of each committee member’s score for each proposal. 

The Evaluation Committee will review all proposals submitted on time. The committee will 
evaluate the proposals and select based on the following criteria: 

• Demonstrated understanding of the requested work and responsiveness to the 
request for proposal. 

• Firm expertise and competence including experiences processing current 
development projects, experience with CEQA and complex EIR’s. 

• Experience with advanced planning such as General Plan, Master Plans, Specific Plans, 
and Housing Element Updates. 

• Excellent written and verbal communication skills. 

• Professional qualifications and experience of individuals likely to be assigned to the 
city. 

• Proposed compensation rates 

• Reference recommendations 

During the evaluation period, the City of Dunsmuir may interview some or all of the proposing 
firms. The interview may consist of a short presentation by the Proposer, after which the 
evaluation committee will ask questions related to the firm’s proposal and qualifications. 

The City of Dunsmuir reserves the right to select a consultant based solely on written 
submittals and not convene oral interviews. If oral interviews are necessary, the selected 
Proposer will be requested to make a formal presentation. The Evaluation Committee will 
recommend one consultant following any interviews. The Committee’s recommendation will 
be reviewed by the City Manager before proceeding to the City Council for action. 

Selection will be based on a “best value” analysis. The City of Dunsmuir reserves the right to 
select the proposal which in its sole judgment best meets the needs of the City of Dunsmuir. 

18



Page 9 of 9 
 

Award 

Acceptance of a proposal or other material during the selection process does not constitute a 
contract and does not obligate the City of Dunsmuir to award funds. Funding is subject to final 
contract approval by the City Council of the City of Dunsmuir. The City of Dunsmuir reserves 
the right to reject any and all responses without penalty and to act in the best interest of 
the City of Dunsmuir. The City of Dunsmuir will evaluate the proposals received and will 
submit the proposal considered to be the most competitive to the City, for consideration and 
selection. The City of Dunsmuir may also negotiate contract terms with the selected Proposer 
prior to award, and expressly reserves the right to negotiate with several Proposers 
simultaneously and , thereafter, to award a contract to the Proposer offering the most 
favorable terms to the City of Dunsmuir. 

Negotiations may or may not be conducted with Proposers; therefore, the proposal 
submitted should contain Proposer’s most favorable terms and conditions, since the selection 
and award may be made without discussion with any Proposer. 

Notification of Award 

Proposers who submit a proposal in response to this RFP shall be notified by email regarding 
the firm who will be recommended for award of the contract. Such notification will be made 
at least seven (7) days before the date the contract is awarded. 

Section 4 Protests 

Bid protests for contracts awarded for professional services shall be submitted and 
responded to in accordance with the requirements noted in Exhibit C. 

Section 5 Tentative Schedule 

The following is a tentative project schedule and milestone requirements for the project. The 
City of Dunsmuir reserves the right to adjust the schedule. 

Issued: April 5, 2024 

Proposals Due: May 3, 2024 at4:00 PM PST 

Award Approval: June 20, 2024 City Council Meeting 

19



 

AGREEMENT FOR PROFESSIONAL PLANNING SERVICES 

XXXXXXX 

On-Call Planning and Environmental Services 

1. PARTIES: 

The parties to this contract are the City of Dunsmuir, a municipal corporation of the State of California (the 
City) and XXXXXX (the Planning Consultant). 

This AGREEMENT is made and entered into on this 20th day of June 2024. 

2. SCOPE OF SERVICES: 

(a) The on-call planning and environmental services to be provided by Planning Consultant are described in 
Exhibit “A” which is made a part of this Agreement as if it were fully set forth at length here at. 

(b) Planning Consultant represents and warrants that all Planning Consultant services shall be provided by a 
person or persons duly licensed by the State of California to provide the type of services described in 
paragraph (a). 

(c) Planning Consultant shall furnish all equipment, supplies, and facilities necessary and convenient to 
perform properly the services required herein. Without limitation, Planning Consultant shall supply any 
needed computer equipment. 

(d) Work Assignments. Upon presentation of a request for an estimate to perform work, Planning 
Professional shall provide a proposal that includes a good faith estimate of the scope, charges, and 
schedule for the assignment. Work shall be undertaken only as specifically authorized in writing by the 
City. City shall be afforded the opportunity to revise project budget, scope, or make other changes City 
desires before charges for work have exceeded the original cost estimate and authorization. Planning 
Consultant retains the right to reject specific assignments and rejection of an assignment does not 
terminate this Agreement. 

(e) Litigation Support. Planning Consultant shall receive compensation for preparing for and/or appearing 
in any litigation at the request of CITY, except: (1) if such litigation costs are incurred by the Planning 
Consultant in defending its work or services or those of any of its sub-consultants; or (2) as may be 
required by the indemnification requirements of the Planning Consultant. Compensation for litigation 
services requested by the CITY shall be paid at a mutually agreed upon rate and/or at a reasonable rate 
for such services. 

3. PAYMENT: 

(a) Payment for services. The City shall pay for services performed in accordance with this contract 
according to the payment and fee schedule contained in Exhibit B.  

No contract price changes shall be made during the term of this Agreement without City’s prior written 
approval. Any additional services requested in writing that is not listed or covered in this Agreement will 
be extra work, less any amounts deemed to be a setoff and shall be payable at either a negotiated fixed fee 
or, if time and materials, at the established rates and expenses.  

20



 

The amount of the request for payment which is approved by City shall be paid to the Planning 
Consultant, less the amount of all previous payments and less all valid setoffs. 

Valid setoffs shall include: 

i. The cost to correct defective services which has not been remedied by the Planning Consultant; 
or 

ii. Claims against the Planning Consultant or any of its subcontractors for services or materials 
furnished; and or 

iii. Failure of Planning Professional to make proper payments to any subcontractors, employees, 
suppliers or materials; and or 

iv. Costs resulting from default by Planning Consultant on any other term or condition of this 
Contract. 

City reserves the right to withhold final payment to the extent that: 

i. There are defective services not remedied by the Planning Consultant; or 

ii. There are claims against the Planning Consultant or any of its subcontractors for labor or 
materials furnished; or 

iii. The Planning Professional has not made proper payments to subcontractors, employees 
or materialmen; or 

iv. The Planning Professional has defaulted on any other term or condition of this 
Agreement. 

The acceptance by the Planning Consultant of the final payment shall constitute a waiver of all claims by 
the Planning Consultant except those previously made in writing and still unsettled. 

No services shall be performed by Planning Consultant in excess of the total contract price without 
City’s prior written approval. 

Planning Consultant shall maintain accounting records including the following information: names 
and titles of employees or agents, types of services performed, and times and dates of all services 
performed in connection with this Agreement which is billed on an hourly basis. 

Planning Consultant shall maintain complete and accurate records with respect to the cost, expenses and 
receipts and other information required by City for any services provided where compensation is on the 
basis of hourly rates, subcontractor costs or other direct costs. Planning Consultant shall maintain 
accurate records on services provided in sufficient detail to permit an evaluation of services. All such 
records shall be maintained in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and shall be 
clearly identified and readily accessible. 

At any time during the term of this Agreement, City may request that Planning Consultant perform 
“extra work.” As used herein, “extra work” means any services that is determined by City to be 
necessary for the proper completion of the project, but which the parties hereto did not reasonably 

21



 

anticipate would be necessary at the time of the execution of this Agreement. Planning Consultant shall 
not perform, nor be compensated for, extra work without City’s prior written approval and authorization. 

(b) Reimbursement of expenses. Planning Consultant will be reimbursed for actual, reasonable and 
necessary expenses incurred in the performance of services in accordance with the fee schedule included 
in Exhibit B. Under no circumstances shall Planning Consultant charge City for Planning Consultant's 
normal overhead such as the preparation of Planning Professional’s and subcontractor’s invoices for 
services performed pursuant to this Agreement. The hourly compensation provided for in this 
Agreement shall include all overhead, markups and personal transportation costs. 

(c) Maximum payment. The maximum payment under this contract for services incurred outside of an 
approved specific project scope and, if authorized, reimbursement of expenses, shall not exceed Twenty-
Five Thousand and no cents ($25,000.00) payable in dollars of the United States of America in one fiscal 
year. The fiscal year begins July 1 and ends June 30.  

(d) Invoices. Planning Consultant shall submit monthly itemized billings to City’s Administrator, allocated 
by Project and/or Task Area according to Exhibit A, Scope of Services and in a form acceptable to City, 
as well as any documentary evidence required by City. City’s Administrator shall review the invoice for 
accuracy. City shall pay to Planning Consultant all charges determined to be accurate by City’s 
Administrator in the regular course of business. Payments are subject to a final audit upon completion of 
services or other termination of this contract.  

Planning Consultant shall submit monthly invoices to City describing the services performed during the 
preceding month and charged in accordance with the hourly rates set out in Exhibit “B” attached hereto 
and incorporated herein by this reference. The Planning Consultant shall provide separate invoices for 
each specific project and grant task at the request of the Administrator. All invoices shall be itemized, 
and state that such services were performed and were necessarily incurred. The itemized statement shall 
specifically set forth compensation and expenses by assigned task, the total compensation and expenses 
for each task billed as of the date of the statement, and the total billing for all compensation and 
expenses from contract inception to the date of the statement. City reserves the right to require 
substantiation of any item of claimed expense. 

Overly generalized listing of task descriptions are not acceptable, rather, Planning Consultant shall 
provide a detailed description which will provide a meaningful record to an independent auditor 
reviewing task description. Any work product or memoranda or other written material described in the 
entries shall be produced for City as requested. 

Billings under this agreement shall not be provided in more than six-minute increments and shall 
represent the devotion of a full six minutes before such an increment is billed. Under no circumstances 
shall Planning Consultant use “block billing” procedures, wherein a list or series of activities is done 
each day with only an aggregate amount of time specified. Instead, Planning Consultant shall provide a 
fully detailed specific entry for each separate task and subtask reflecting the time for such task or 
subtask. 

The City shall act to approve or deny each invoice submitted by Planning Consultant within thirty days 
from receipt of the invoice. Payment shall be mailed to Planning Consultant within fourteen days of 
City’s approval. 

 

22



 

(e) Audit of Records. Planning Consultant shall maintain complete and accurate records of all payrolls, 
expenditures, disbursements and other cost items charged to the City or establishing the basis for an 
invoice. All such records shall be clearly identifiable. Planning Consultant shall allow City 
Administrator to inspect, examine, copy and audit such records during regular business hours upon 24 
hours notice. 

In addition to the accounting records, Planning Consultant shall allow City the right to examine and audit 
all records, and to make transcripts thereof as necessary, allow inspections of all work, data, documents, 
proceedings and activities relating to this Agreement. Such records, together with supporting documents 
shall be maintained for a period of three (3) years after receipt of final payment or for so long as required 
by any grant funding this agreement. 

4. TIME FOR PERFORMANCE: 

(a) Planning Consultant will perform the services according to a scope agreed to by both parties. 
Performance under this Agreement shall commence immediately upon City’s issuance of a Notice to 
Proceed and shall continue for a period of five (5) years with the option to extend the contract for two (2) 
years. Planning Consultant shall perform diligently and continuously to complete all services set forth in 
the Scope of Services. In the event that Planning Consultant fails to strictly adhere to the times for 
performance as hereinafter provided, City may in its sole and absolute discretion terminate this 
Agreement. 

If additional funding is not authorized to pay for professional services beyond those services authorized 
by the Notice to Proceed in this Agreement, City and Planning Consultant shall negotiate modifications 
to the schedule to accommodate the availability of funds. If the schedule calls for the services to be 
performed in phases or discrete increments, Planning Consultant shall not proceed from one phase or 
increment to the next without written authorization from the Contract Administrator. Unless there are 
subsequent modifications to the schedule, the Planning Consultant will complete all services by as 
shown on the schedule. In the event of a dispute between the parties concerning the interpretation of 
this Agreement, Planning Consultant shall not be excused from any scheduled completion date provided 
for by this Agreement, but shall diligently proceed with all Services to be performed. No Services shall 
be delayed or postponed by Planning Consultant, pending resolution of any disputes with the City unless 
otherwise agreed to by both parties in writing. 

The services shall be performed on a continuous, ongoing basis.  Planning Consultant will meet 
with the Contract Administrator as needed to evaluate workload and schedule upcoming activities and 
staffing needs. The Planning Consultant and Contract Administrator will set mutually acceptable 
timing requirements at the time the work to be performed is assigned. Planning Professional shall 
submit all requests for extensions of time for performance in writing to the Contract Administrator 
no later than ten calendar days after the start of the condition allegedly causing the delay, and not later 
than the date on which performance is due. Contract Administrator shall review all such requests and 
may grant reasonable time extensions for unforeseeable delays that are beyond the control of the 
Planning Consultant. 

For all time periods not specifically set forth in this Agreement, the Planning Consultant shall respond 
in the most expedient and appropriate manner under the circumstances, including but not limited to 
telephone, fax, hand delivery, email, or mail. 

(b) Extension of time for unforeseen circumstances. In the event that the Planning Consultant is unable to 
meet the completion date or schedule of services, if any, due to circumstances beyond Planning 

23



 

Consultant’s reasonable control, such as war, riots, strikes, lockouts, work slowdown or stoppage, except 
strikes, lockouts, or work slowdown or stoppage of Planning Consultant’s employees or subcontractors, 
acts of god, such as floods or earthquakes, and electrical blackouts or brownouts, Planning Consultant 
shall inform the Contract Administrator of the additional time required to perform the work and the 
Contract Administrator may adjust the schedule. 

5. STANDARD OF PERFORMANCE: 

(a) All services shall be performed by Planning Consultant and each of its employees in accordance all 
applicable legal requirements and shall meet and conform with generally accepted professional practices 
and principles and in a manner consistent with the level of care and skill ordinarily exercised under 
similar conditions by members of Planning Consultant's profession currently practicing design and 
construction management services in California. By delivery of completed work, Planning Consultant 
certifies that the work conforms to the requirements of this contract and all applicable federal, state and 
local laws, specific funding program requirements, and the professional standard of care in California. 

City has relied upon the professional training and ability of Planning Consultant to perform the services 
and Scope of Services hereunder as a material inducement to enter into this Agreement. Planning 
Consultant shall therefore provide properly skilled professional and technical personnel to perform all 
services required by it to be performed under this Agreement. In the event that City, in its sole 
discretion, at any time during the term of this Agreement, desires the removal of any person or persons 
assigned by Planning Consultant to perform Services pursuant to this Agreement, Planning Consultant 
shall remove any such person immediately upon receiving written notice from City of its desire for 
removal of such person or persons. 

All compensation payable to Planning Consultant hereunder shall be paid by City. Planning Consultant 
acknowledges and recognizes that Services under this Agreement have its source from tax dollars from 
tax payers of the State of California and that, given this fact, a heightened duty of care exists in Planning 
Consultant to ensure that Planning Consultant scrupulously adheres to principles of moderation, frugality 
and cost consciousness in carrying forth the goals of and completing the pursuant to this Agreement 

(b) Planning Consultant is responsible for making an independent evaluation and judgment of all conditions 
affecting performance of the work, including without limitation site conditions, existing facilities, 
seismic, geologic, soils, hydrologic, geographic, climatic conditions, applicable federal, state, and local 
laws and regulations, and all other contingencies or design considerations. Data, calculations, opinions, 
reports, investigations, and other similar information provided by the City relating to site, local, or other 
conditions is not warranted or guaranteed, either expressly or implied, by the City. 

(c) Planning Consultant's responsibilities under this section are shall not be delegated. Planning Consultant 
shall be responsible to the City for acts, errors, or omissions of Planning Consultant's subcontractors. 

(d) Whenever the scope of work requires or permits review, approval, conditional approval or disapproval 
by the City, it is understood that such review, approval, conditional approval or disapproval is solely for 
the purposes of administering this contract and determining whether the Planning Consultant is entitled 
to payment for such work, and not be construed as a waiver of any breach or acceptance by the City of 
any responsibility, professional or otherwise, for the work, and shall not does not relieve the Planning 
Consultant of responsibility for complying with the standard of performance or laws, regulations, 
industry standards, or from liability for damages caused by negligent acts, errors, omissions, 
noncompliance with industry standards, or the willful misconduct of Planning Consultant. 

24



 

6. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR: 

Planning Consultant is an independent contractor. Neither Planning Consultant nor any of Planning 
Consultant's officers, employees, agents, or subcontractors, if any, is an employee of the City by virtue of 
this contract or performance of any work under this contract. Planning Consultant is not a designated 
employee within the meaning of the Political Reform Act because Planning Consultant: 

i. Will conduct research and arrive at conclusions with respect to his/her rendition of information, 
advice, recommendations, or counsel independent of the control and direction of the City or of 
any City official, other than normal agreement monitoring; and possesses no authority with 
respect to any City decision beyond rendition of information, advice, recommendation, or 
counsel. 

ii. Does not make or participate in the making of any governmental decisions regarding approval of 
a rate, rule, or regulation, the adoption or enforcement of laws; 

iii. Does not make or participate in the issuance, denial, suspension or revocation of permits, 
licenses, applications, certificates, approvals, orders, or similar authorization or entitlement; 

iv. Does not make or participate in authorizing the City to enter into, modify, or renew a contract; 

v. Does not make or participate in granting City approval to a contract that requires City approval 
and to which the City is a party, or to the specifications for such a contract; 

vi. does not make or participate in granting City approval to a plan, design, report, study, or similar 
item; 

vii. Does not make or participate in adopting, or granting City approval of, policies, standards, or 
guidelines for the City or for any subdivision thereof. 

viii. Does not serve in a staff capacity with the City and in that capacity participate in making a 
governmental decision or otherwise perform the same or substantially all the same duties for the 
City that would otherwise be performed by an individual holding a position specified in the 
City’s Conflict of Interest Code under Government Code Section 87302. 

In the event the City officially determines that Planning Consultant must disclose its financial interests 
by completing and filing a Fair Political Practices Commission Form 700, Statement of Economic 
Interests, Planning Consultant shall file the subject Form 700 with the City Clerk’s Office pursuant to the 
written instructions provided by the Office of the City Clerk. 

7. SUCCESSOR AND ASSIGNS: 

Planning Consultant shall not subcontract, assign or transfer voluntarily or involuntarily any of its rights, 
duties, or obligations under this contract without the express written consent of the City in each instance. 

All representations, covenants and warranties specifically set forth in this Agreement, by or on behalf of, 
or for the benefit of any or all of the parties hereto, shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of such 
party, its successors and assigns. This Agreement and any portion thereof shall not be assigned or 
transferred, nor shall any of the Planning Consultant’s duties be delegated, without the express written 
consent of the City. Any attempt to assign or delegate this Agreement without the express written 

25



 

consent of City shall be void and of no force or effect. Consent by City to one assignment shall not be 
deemed to be consent to any subsequent assignment. 

8. SUBCONTRACTORS: 

(a) City and Planning Consultant recognize and acknowledge that Planning Consultant is hereunder 
employed in a position where Planning Consultant will be rendering services of a special, unique, 
unusual and extraordinary character requiring extraordinary ingenuity and effort by Planning Consultant. 
The parties hereto recognize that a substantial inducement to City for entering into this Agreement is the 
reputation, experience, and competence of Planning Consultant. This Agreement and any portion thereof 
shall not be assigned or transferred, nor shall any of Planning Consultant’s duties be delegated, without 
the express written consent of City. Any attempt to assign or delegate this Agreement without the 
express written consent of City shall be void and of no force or effect. Consent by City to one 
assignment shall not be deemed to be consent to any subsequent assignment. Planning Consultant shall 
provide qualifications of assignees for review by City, which will not unreasonably withhold consent. 
Planning Consultant shall not subcontract any portion of the work to be performed without the prior 
written authorization of City. If City consents to said subcontract, Planning Consultant shall be fully 
responsible to City for all acts or omissions of subcontractor. Nothing in this Agreement shall create any 
contractual relationship between City and subcontractor nor shall it create any obligation on the part of 
City to pay or to see to the payment of any monies due to any such subcontractor other than as otherwise 
is required by law. This Agreement shall inure to the benefit of and be binding upon the parties hereto 
and their respective successors and assigns. 

(b) When subcontracting of Services is permitted, Planning Consultant shall pay subcontractor within 45 
days of receipt of payment by City for work performed by a subcontractor and billed by the Planning 
Consultant. Use of the term subcontractor in any other provision of this contract shall not be construed 
to imply authorization for Planning Consultant to use subcontractors for performance of any service 
under this contract. 

(c) The City is an intended beneficiary of any work performed by the subcontractor for purposes of 
establishing a duty of care between the subcontractor and the City. 

9. PLANNING CONSULTANT'S EMPLOYEES: 

(a) The key personnel to perform the services shall be assigned at the beginning of the project and shall 
remain assigned through completion of the services, unless otherwise mutually agreed by the parties in 
writing, or caused by hardship or resignation in which case substitutes shall be subject to City approval. 

(b) Immigration Reform and Control Act of 1986. Planning Consultant is aware of the requirements of the 
Immigration Reform and Control Act of 1986 and shall comply with those requirements, including, but 
not limited to, verifying the eligibility for employment of all of Planning Consultant’s officers, 
employees, agents and subcontractors that are included in this contract. 

(c) Limitation of City Liability. The payment made to Planning Consultant pursuant to this contract shall be 
the full and complete compensation to which Planning Consultant and Planning Consultant’s officers, 
employees, agents, and subcontractors are entitled for performance of any work under this contract. 
Neither Planning Consultant nor Planning Consultant’s officers or employees are entitled to any salary or 
wages, or retirement, health, leave or other fringe benefits applicable to employees of the City. The City 
will not make any federal or state tax withholdings on behalf of Planning Consultant. The City shall not 

26



 

be required to pay any workers' compensation insurance on behalf of Planning Consultant. 

(d) Indemnification for Employee Payments. Planning Consultant agrees to defend and indemnify the City 
for any obligation, claim, suit or demand for tax, retirement contribution including any contribution to 
the Public Employees Retirement System (PERS), social security, salary or wages, overtime payment, or 
workers' compensation payment which the City may be required to make on behalf of Planning 
Consultant or any employee of Planning Consultant, or any employee of Planning Consultant construed 
to be an employee of the City, for work done under this contract. This is a continuing obligation that 
survives the termination of this contract. 

10. FAIR EMPLOYMENT PRACTICES: 

(a) Civil Rights Act. Planning Consultant agrees to comply with Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, 
as amended, the California Fair Employment Practices Act, the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, 
any other applicable federal and state laws and regulations hereinafter enacted. 

(b) Indemnification for Employee Behavior. To the fullest extent permitted by law and without limitation 
by the provisions of Section 19 relating to insurance, the Planning Consultant shall also indemnify, 
defend and hold harmless the City, and its directors, officers, employees and agents from and against all 
liability (including without limitation all claims, damages, penalties, fines, and judgments, associated 
investigation and administrative expenses, and defense costs, including but not limited to reasonable 
attorneys' fees, court costs, and costs of alternative dispute resolution) resulting from any claim of 
discrimination or harassment, including but not limited to sexual harassment, arising from the conduct 
of the Planning Consultant or any of the Planning Consultant's officers, employees, agents, licensees, or 
subcontractors. In the event of a discrimination or harassment complaint against any employee, agent, 
licensee or subcontractors of the Planning Consultant or its subcontractors, the Planning Consultant shall 
take immediate and appropriate action in response to such complaint, including, but not limited to 
termination or appropriate discipline of any responsible employee, agent, licensee or subcontractors. 
The provisions of this Section survive completion of the services or termination of the Contract. 

11. WORKPLACE CONDUCT AND BEHAVIOR: 

Planning Consultant and Planning Consultant’s officers, employees, agents and subcontractors shall comply 
with a Substance-free Work Place Policy, and other rules and regulations governing work place safety, 
conduct, and behavior, for any portion of the work performed on the premises of the City or using City 
facilities or equipment. 

12. OWNERSHIP OF WORK PRODUCT: 

Upon delivery, the work product, including without limitation, all original reports, writings, recordings, 
drawings, files, and detailed calculations developed under this contract are the property of the City. 
Planning Consultant agrees that all copyrights which arise from creation of the work pursuant to this contract 
shall be vested in the City and waives and relinquishes all claims to copyright or other intellectual property 
rights in favor of the City. City acknowledges that its use of the work product is limited to the purposes 
contemplated by the scope of work and that the Planning Consultant makes no representation of the 
suitability of the work product for use in or application to circumstances not contemplated by the scope of 
work. In return for Planning Consultant’s relinquishment of ownership, CITY agrees to waive any claim 
against Planning Consultant and indemnify and hold Planning Consultant harmless from any claim or 
liability for injury or loss arising from unauthorized re-use of Planning Consultant’s instruments of service 

27



 

by CITY. 

13. DELIVERABLES: 
All printed and digital material, if any, required to be submitted by Planning Consultant as a draft or final 
deliverable and produced using computer software shall include, as part of that deliverable, copies of all 
pertinent computer files on flash drive or online dropbox software. Computer files shall use MS Word© for 
documents, and MS Excel© for spreadsheets and estimates, ESRI products for mapping projects, and 
AutoCAD © .dwg for drawing files. At the conclusion of the project, electronic copies of final (or as-built) 
plans and specifications shall be provided on a flash drive in native and Adobe Acrobat .pdf formats for the 
City’s permanent records. 

14. CHANGES IN WORK: 

No payment for changed or additional work shall be made unless the changed or additional work has first 
been approved in writing by the Contract Administrator and the parties have agreed upon the appropriate 
adjustment, if any, to the payment schedule and maximum payment amount for the changed or additional 
work. The Contract Administrator may order changes or additions to the scope of work. Whether a change 
or addition to the scope of work is proposed by the Planning Consultant or ordered by the Contract 
Administrator, the parties shall in good faith negotiate an appropriate adjustment, if any, to the payment 
schedule and maximum payment for the changed or additional work. An approved change or addition, along 
with the payment adjustment, if any, will be effective upon an amendment to this contract executed by both 
parties. The amendment shall not render ineffective or invalidate unaffected portions of this contract. 

15. CONFIDENTIALITY: 
(a) Confidential Nature of Information. Planning Consultant shall treat all information obtained from the 

City in the performance of this contract as confidential and proprietary to the City. Planning Consultant 
shall treat all records and work product prepared or maintained by Planning Consultant in the 
performance of this contract as confidential. 

(b) Limitation on use and disclosure. Planning Consultant agrees that it will not use any information 
obtained as a consequence of the performance of work for any purpose other than fulfillment of 
Planning Consultant's scope of work. Planning Consultant will not disclose any information prepared for 
the City, or obtained from the City or obtained as a consequence of the performance of work to any 
person other than the City, or its own employees, agents or subcontractors who have a need for the 
information for the performance of work under this contract unless such disclosure is specifically 
authorized in writing by the City. 

(c) Security plan. If requested by the Contract Administrator, Planning Consultant shall prepare a security 
plan to assure that information obtained from the City or as a consequence of the performance of work is 
not used for any unauthorized purpose or disclosed to unauthorized persons. Planning Consultant shall 
advise the City of any request for disclosure of information or of any actual or potential disclosure of 
information. 

(d) Survival. Planning Consultant’s obligations under this paragraph shall survive the termination of this 
contract. 

16. PROHIBITED INTEREST: 
No official or employee of the City who is authorized in such capacity on behalf of the City to negotiate, 
make, accept, or approve, or take part in negotiating, making, accepting, or approving this contract, shall 

28



 

become directly or indirectly interested in this contract or in any part thereof. No officer or employee of the 
City who is authorized in such capacity and on behalf of the City to exercise any executive, supervisory, or 
similar functions in connection with the performance of this contract shall become directly or indirectly 
interested personally in this contract or any part thereof 

Planning Consultant agrees that its firm has not employed or retained any company or person, other than a 
bona fide employee working for Planning Consultant, to solicit or secure this contract, and that Planning 
Consultant has not paid or agreed to pay any company or person, other than a bona fide employee, any fee, 
commission, percentage, brokerage fee, gift, or any other consideration contingent upon, or resulting from, 
the award or making of this contract. For breach or violation of this provision, the City shall have the right 
to terminate this contract without liability, or, in its discretion, to deduct from the contract price or 
consideration, or otherwise recover, the full amount of such fee, commission, percentage, brokerage fees, 
gift, or contingent fee. 

17. CONFLICT OF INTEREST: 

Planning Consultant shall not make or participate in making or in any way attempt to use Planning 
Consultant's position to influence a governmental decision in which Planning Consultant knows or has 
reason to know Planning Consultant has a direct or indirect financial interest other than the compensation 
promised by this contract. Planning Consultant will not have such interest during the term of this contract. 
Planning Consultant will immediately advise the City’s Administrator and the City Attorney if Planning 
Consultant learns of a financial interest of Planning Consultant's during the term of this contract. If Planning 
Consultant’s participation in another City project would create an actual or potential conflict of interest, in the 
opinion of the City, the City may disqualify Planning Consultant from participation in such other project 
during the term of this Contract. 

18. INDEMNIFICATION: 

To the fullest extent permitted by law, whenever Planning Consultant and Planning Consultant’s Related 
Parties are performing services Planning Consultant shall indemnify, defend (at Planning Consultant’s sole 
cost and expense and with legal counsel approved by City, which approval shall not be unreasonably 
withheld), protect and hold harmless City and City’s Related Parties (collectively, the “Indemnified 
Parties”), from and against any and all Liabilities of every kind and nature whatsoever (individually, a 
“Claim”; collectively, “Claims”) which may arise from or in any manner relate to (directly or indirectly), 
arise out of, or pertain to the negligence, recklessness, or willful misconduct of Planning Consultant’s 
Activities, but this indemnity does not apply to liability for damages arising from the negligence, active 
negligence, or willful acts of the City and City’s Related Parties provided such active negligence is 
determined by agreement between parties or by the findings of a court of competent jurisdiction. Instances 
where Indemnified Parties are shown to have been actively negligent and where Indemnified Parties active 
negligence accounts for only a percentage of the liability involved, the obligation of Planning Consultant 
will be for that entire portion or percentage of liability not attributable to the active negligence of 
Indemnified Parties. Planning Consultant’s obligations under this section apply regardless of whether or not 
such Liabilities was caused in part or contributed to by Indemnified Parties. 

Without limiting Planning Consultant's obligation to indemnify City upon City’s request, Planning 
Consultant shall indemnify, hold harmless, protect and defend with legal counsel acceptable to the City at 
Planning Consultant’s sole cost, City from and against all Liabilities, paid, incurred or suffered by, or 
asserted against City in a judicial, administrative or regulatory forum or otherwise, whether well founded or 
not, for regardless of nature or type that arise out of, pertain to, or relate to the negligence, reckless, or willful 
misconduct of the Planning Consultant or Planning Consultant's Related Parties, any of Planning 

29



 

Consultant’s Activities. 

Should conflict of interest principles preclude a single lawyer from representing both Planning Consultant 
and Indemnified Parties, or should City find Planning Consultant’s legal counsel unacceptable, then Planning 
Consultant shall reimburse Indemnified parties for their costs of defense, including without limitation, 
reasonable and necessary attorney’s fees, expert fees and all other costs and fees of litigation. Planning 
Consultant shall promptly pay any final judgment rendered against Indemnified Parties covered by this 
indemnity obligation. It is expressly understood and agreed that the foregoing provisions are intended to be 
as broad and inclusive as is permitted by the law of the State of California and will survive termination of 
this Agreement. 

For purposes of defense and indemnification relating to this Agreement: 

i. “Liabilities” means liabilities, lawsuits, claims, judgments, demands, clean-up orders, damages 
(whether in contract or tort, including personal injury, death at any time, or property damage), costs, 
expenses, loss, penalties and other detriments of every nature and description whatsoever, including 
all costs and expenses of litigation or arbitration, attorney’s fees (whether City’s or Planning 
Consultant's staff attorneys or outside attorneys) and court costs, whether under state or federal law 
except liabilities caused by the sole negligence or willful misconduct of the indemnified party. 

ii. “City’s Activities” means liability for death or bodily injury to persons, injury to property, or other 
loss arising out of actions that are the sole negligence, willful misconduct or defects in design 
furnished by City or arising from the active negligence of City. 

iii. “City and City’s Related Parties” means City and City’s elected officials, officers, volunteers, 
representatives, partners, designees, attorneys, employees, agents, successors and assigns, and any 
lender of City with an interest in the Project that is the subject of this contract. 

iv. “Planning Consultant and Planning Consultant’s Related Parties” includes Planning Consultant and 
its respective officers, directors, shareholders, members, partners, agents, employees, subcontractors, 
Planning Consultants, licensees, invitees, guarantors or affiliates. "Affiliates" means a person that 
directly or indirectly through one or more intermediaries, controls, or is controlled by, or is under 
common control with, the Planning Consultant, where construction or interpretation of "control" 
shall be governed by Rule 144 of the Securities Act of 1993. Planning Consultant shall use best 
efforts, or cause such persons to use best efforts, to provide City's legal counsel all reasonably 
necessary information relevant to such persons, including proper and legal corporate names and 
relationship (or lack thereof) to Planning Consultant's articles of incorporation, certificates of good 
standing, and other documentation related directly or indirectly to alleged liabilities. 

v. “Planning Consultant’s Activities” means any actions or omissions of Planning Consultant or 
Planning Consultant’s Related Parties in the performance of this Agreement directly or indirectly 
arising from Planning Consultant or Planning Consultant’s Related Parties Scope of Services and as 
set out in as well as any breach of representation or warranty of Planning Consultant set forth in this 
Agreement, including Exhibit A and Exhibit B, of which are hereby incorporated in this Agreement. 

The provisions of this Section shall survive termination of this Agreement and Sections relating to insurance 
does not limit its provisions. 

30



 

19. INSURANCE 

Planning Consultant shall procure and maintain during the period of performance of this contract and for 24 
months following completion, insurance from insurance companies authorized to do business in the State of 
California, as set forth in this section and Exhibit “C”, attached hereto and made a part of this Agreement as 
if it were fully set forth al length at this point. These policies shall be primary insurance as to the City so that 
any other coverage held by the City shall not contribute to any loss under Planning Consultant's insurance. 

20. ACCIDENT REPORTS: 

Planning Consultant shall immediately report (as soon as feasible, but not more than 24 hours) to the 
Contract Administrator and City’s Risk Administrator any accident or other occurrence causing injury to 
persons or property during the performance of this Contract. If required by the City’s Risk Administrator, 
the report shall be made in writing and shall include, at a minimum: (a) the names, addresses, and telephone 
numbers of the persons involved, (b) the names, addresses and telephone numbers of any known witnesses, 
(c) the date, time and description of the accident or other occurrence. 

21. COVENANT AGAINST CONTINGENT FEES: 

Planning Consultant agrees that its firm has not employed or retained any company or person, other than a 
bona fide employee working for Planning Consultant, to solicit or secure this contract, and that Planning 
Consultant has not paid or agreed to pay any company or person, other than a bona fide employee, any fee, 
commission, percentage, brokerage fee, gift, or any other consideration contingent upon, or resulting from, 
the award or making of this contract. For breach or violation of this provision, the City shall have the right 
to terminate this contract without liability, or, in its discretion, to deduct from the contract price or 
consideration, or otherwise recover, the full amount of such fee, commission, percentage, brokerage fees, 
gift, or contingent fee. 

22. TERMINATION OR ABANDONMENT: 

The parties shall be excused from performing their respective obligations hereunder in the event they are 
prevented from so performing by reason of floods, earthquakes, tsunamis, other "acts of God", war, civil 
insurrection, riots, and other similar catastrophic events which are beyond the control of and not the fault of 
the party claiming excuse from performance hereunder. Labor unrest, including but not limited to strike, 
work stoppage or slowdown, sickout, picketing, or other concerted job action conducted by Planning 
Consultant's employees or directed at Planning Consultant is not an excuse from performance and Planning 
Consultant shall be obligated to continue to provide service notwithstanding the occurrence of any or all of 
such events. In the case of labor unrest or job action directed at a third party over whom Planning Consultant 
has no control, the inability of Planning Consultant to provide Agreement Services due to the unwillingness 
or failure of the third party to provide reasonable assurance of the safety of Planning Consultant's employees 
while providing Agreement Services to minimize any confrontation with pickets shall, to that limited extent, 
excuse performance. The foregoing excuse shall be conditioned on Planning Consultant's cooperation in 
providing Services at different times. 

The party claiming excuse from performance shall, within two (2) days after such party has notice of such 
cause, give the other party notice of the facts constituting such cause and asserting its claim to excuse under 
this Section. 

City’s Rights. The City has the right to terminate or abandon any portion or all of the work by giving 10 
days written notice. Upon receipt of a notice of termination, Planning Consultant shall perform no further 

31



 

work except as specified in the notice. Before the date of termination, Planning Consultant shall deliver to 
City all work product, whether completed or not, as of the date of termination and not otherwise previously 
delivered. The City shall pay Planning Consultant for services performed in accordance with this contract 
before the date of termination. If this contract provides for payment of a lump sum for all services or by task 
and termination occurs before completion of the work or any defined task which according to the 
performance schedule was commenced before the notice of termination, the fee for services performed shall 
be based on an amount mutually agreed to by the City and Planning Consultant for the portion of work 
completed in conformance with this contract before the date of termination. In addition, the City will 
reimburse Planning Consultant for authorized expenses incurred and not previously reimbursed. 

The City shall not be liable for any fees or costs associated for the termination or abandonment except for the 
fees, and reimbursement of authorized expenses, payable pursuant to this section. 

In addition to any and all other legal or equitable remedies, in the event that Planning Consultant, for any 
reason whatsoever, fails, refuses or is unable to perform Services which it is required by the Agreement to 
perform, at the time and in the manner provided in this Agreement, then City shall have the right, but not the 
obligation, to cause to be performed such Services with other personnel. 

The Services of Planning Consultant may be immediately terminated, without notice, at any time prior to the 
expiration of the term of this Agreement by: 

1. The occurrence of circumstances that make it impossible and impractical for the business of City to 
be continued; 

2. The death of the Planning Consultant or City; 

3. The loss of the Planning Consultant or City of legal capacity; 

4. The loss by the City or Planning Consultant of the legal capacity to contract; 

5. Habitual neglect by the Planning Consultant of Planning Consultant's duties, unless waived by the 
City; 

6. Continued incapacity on the part of the Planning Consultant to perform his/her duties, unless waived 
by the City; 

7. If the City ceases the operation of all its operations in this area, then this Agreement shall terminate 
as of the effective date of the discontinuance of such operation. 

Planning Consultant's Rights. Planning Consultant, if Planning Consultant is not in default or breach, may 
terminate Planning Consultant's obligation to provide further services under this contract upon 30 days’ 
written notice only in the event of a material default by the City, which default has not been cured within 30 
days following the written notice. 

23. SUCCESSORS OR ASSIGNS: 

All terms, conditions, and provisions of this contract shall apply to and bind the respective heirs, executors, 
administrators, successors, and assigns of the parties. Nothing in this paragraph is intended to affect the 
limitation on assignment. 

32



 

24. DAMAGE OR LOSS OF EQUIPMENT OR FACILITIES: 

(a) General Obligation. Planning Consultant shall pay to the City the replacement cost of any equipment or 
repair cost of any facilities provided by the City for Planning Consultant's use in performance of services 
that is lost or damaged by Planning Consultant or Planning Consultant's officers, employees, agents, or 
subcontractors. 

(b) Keys. During the term of the contract, Planning Consultant may be issued keys to City facilities in order 
to perform the scope of work. Keys shall not be loaned, duplicated, or given to anyone not authorized to 
have the keys. Planning Consultant will sign for each key and each key will be returned to the project 
Administrator when access to that area is no longer authorized, or at the end of the contract term, 
whichever is applicable. Should keys become lost or stolen, Planning Consultant shall immediately 
notify the Contract Administrator. A charge will be assessed for all expenses incurred by the City, 
including the replacement of locks, lock cores, keys, and other materials necessary to ensure the City 
security level is returned to the same level existing prior to the loss of the key(s). 

25. ELECTRONIC COMMUNICATIONS: 

During the course of this contract, communications may occur through sending, receiving or exchanging 
electronic versions of documents and e-mails using commercially available computer software and Internet 
access. Planning Consultant and the City acknowledge that the Internet is occasionally victimized by the 
creation and dissemination of so-called viruses, or similar destructive electronic programs. Planning 
Consultant and the City view the issues raised by these viruses seriously and have invested in document and 
e-mail scanning software that identify and reject files containing known viruses. Planning Consultant agrees 
to update its system with the software vendor’s most current releases at regular intervals. 

Because of the virus scanning software, the respective computer systems of the parties may occasionally 
reject a communication. The parties acknowledge that this occurrence is to be expected as part of the 
ordinary course of business. Because the virus protection industry is generally one or two steps behind new 
viruses, neither party can guarantee that its respective communications and documents will be virus free. 
Occasionally, a virus will escape and go undetected as it is passed from system to system. Although each 
party will use all reasonable efforts to assure that its communications are virus free, neither party warrants 
that its documents will be virus free. Each party agrees to advise the other if it discovers a virus in its 
respective system that may have been communicated to the other party. 

26. LAWS AND VENUE: 

The laws of the State of California govern this contract and disputes arising out of or relating to the contract 
or the parties’ relationship. Any action or proceeding arising out of or relating to the contract or the parties’ 
relationship shall be brought in a state court situated in Siskiyou County, State of California unless 
transferred by court order pursuant to Code of Civil Procedure Sections 394 and 395. Any action or 
proceeding arising out of or relating to the contract or the parties’ relationship brought in a federal court shall 
be in the U.S. District Court, Northern District of California. This Agreement shall be construed in 
accordance with the laws of the State of California. 

27. ADMINISTRATION: 

(a) Planning Consultant's business identification. Planning Consultant's agent for service of process is 
[Name], [Address]. Planning Professional is a California corporation composed of duly California 

33



 

licensed professionals. Planning Consultant's California Secretary of State’s identification number is 
C2460874. Planning Consultant's Federal ID Number or Social Security Number under which payments 
will be reported on a W-9 before the first payment under this agreement is processed. 

Planning Consultant's contact information is: 

Address:  

Phone:  

Fax:  

Email:  

 

(b) City’s Representative. The City’s representative for administration of this contract is Dustin Rief, City 
Manager or her designee, who is the designated Contract Administrator or City Representative. The City 
may change the Contract Administrator at any time upon notice to the Planning Consultant. 

(c) Planning Consultant's Representative. The Planning Consultant's representative for administration of 
this contract is Jason Drew who is designated as the Project Administrator. The Planning Consultant may 
change the Project Administrator upon written notice to and approval by the Contract Administrator. 

(d) Notices. Any notice or instrument required to be given or delivered by law or this contract shall be 
effective upon receipt thereof and shall be by personal service or delivered by depositing the same in any 
United States Post Office, registered or certified, postage prepaid, addressed to: 

City: 
City of Dunsmuir Attn: City Manager 
5915 Dunsmuir Ave, 
Dunsmuir, CA 96025 

With a copy to: 
Dunsmuir City Attorney 
[Address] 

Planning Consultant: 
[Contact Name] 
[Address] 

 

Either party may change the address or identity of the person for notices under this paragraph by written 
notice to the other delivered in accordance with this paragraph. 

(e) Routine Administrative Communications. Routine administrative communication required to be in 
writing may be by personal delivery, mail, facsimile transmission or electronic mail as agreed between 
the Planning Consultant and Contract Administrator. 

 

34



 

28. ADVICE OF COUNSEL: 

The parties agree that they are aware that they have the right to be advised by counsel with respect to the 
negotiations, terms, and conditions of this contract, and that the decision of whether or not to seek the advice 
of counsel with respect to this contract is a decision which is the sole responsibility of each of the parties 
hereto. This contract shall not be construed in favor or against either party by reason of the extent to which 
each party participated in the drafting of the contract. 

29. INDEPENDENT REVIEW: 

Each party hereto declares and represents that in entering this contract it has relied and is relying solely upon 
its own judgment, belief and knowledge of the nature, extent, effect and consequence relating thereto. Each 
party further declares and represents that this contract is being made without reliance upon any statement or 
representation not contained herein of any other party, or any representative, agent, or attorney of any other 
party. 

30. TIME: 

Time is of the essence in this contract. Any reference to days means calendar days unless otherwise 
specifically stated. 

31. ASSIGNMENT OF ANTI-TRUST CLAIMS: 
The Planning Consultant offers and agrees to assign to the City all rights, title and interest in and to all causes 
of action it may have under Section 4 of the Clayton Act (15 U.S.C. Sec. 15) or under the Cartwright Act 
[Chapter 2 (commencing with § 16700) of Part 2 of Division 7 of the Business and Professions Code], 
arising from purchases of goods, services, or materials pursuant to the contract. This assignment shall 
become effective at the time the City tenders final payment to Planning Consultant, without further 
acknowledgment by the parties. The Planning Consultant shall have the rights set forth in Sections 4553 and 
4554 of the Government Code. 

32. TAXES: 

The Planning Consultant shall pay all applicable federal, state, and local excise, sales, business license, 
consumer use, and other similar taxes required by law for the execution of the work. 

33. SEVERABILITY. 

If any provision of this Agreement is held to be unenforceable, the remaining provisions of this Agreement 
are severable and shall remain valid and enforceable. 

34. AMENDMENTS. 

This Agreement may be amended at any time only by mutual written consent of the parties. 

35. WAIVER. 

A waiver by any party of any breach of any term, covenant or condition herein contained or a waiver of any 
right or remedy of such party available hereunder at law or in equity shall not be deemed to be a waiver of 
any subsequent breach of the same or any other term, covenant or condition herein contained or of any 
continued or subsequent right to the same right or remedy. No party shall be deemed to have made any such 

35



 

waiver unless it is in writing and signed by the party so waiving. 

36. COMPLETENESS OF INSTRUMENT. 

This Agreement, together with its specific references and attachments, constitutes all of the agreements, 
understandings, representations, conditions, warranties and covenants made by and between the parties 
hereto. Unless set forth herein, neither party shall be liable for any representations made express or implied. 

37. SUPERSEDES PRIOR AGREEMENTS. 

It is the intention of the parties hereto that this Agreement shall supersede any prior agreements, discussions, 
commitments, representations, or agreements, written or oral, between the parties hereto. 

38. ATTORNEY’S FEES. 

If any action at law or in equity, excepting an action for declaratory relief, is brought to enforce provisions of 
this Agreement by reason of the alleged failure of the other to perform or keep any provision or this 
Agreement to be performed or kept, the prevailing party in such action or proceeding (including appeal) shall 
be entitled to recover court costs and reasonable attorney’s fees (including reasonable value of services 
rendered by attorney’s employed by City) which may be set by the Court in the same action or in a separate 
action brought for that purpose, in addition to any other relief to which such party may be entitled. As used 
herein, the “prevailing party” means the party who dismisses an action or proceeding in exchange for 
payment of substantially all sums due, performance of provisions allegedly breached, or other considerations 
substantially equal to the relief sought by said party, as well as the party in whose favor final judgment is 
rendered. 

39. COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS. 

Planning Consultant's services hereunder shall be conducted in accordance with all the laws, ordinances, 
rules and regulations applicable to such business as set forth by the City, State of California, and the United 
States government. Planning Consultant agrees to indemnify City against any damages, expenses, or price 
reductions under this Agreement resulting from Planning Consultant or Planning Consultant's lower-tier 
subcontractors' failure to comply with the above laws and regulations. 

40. COUNTERPARTS. 

This Agreement may be executed simultaneously and in several counterparts, each of which shall be deemed 
an original, but which together shall constitute one and the same instrument. 

41. OTHER DOCUMENTS. 

The parties agree that they shall cooperate in good faith to accomplish the object of this Agreement and to 
that end, agree to execute and deliver such other and further instruments and documents as may be necessary 
and convenient to the fulfillment of these purposes. 

 

42. AUTHORITY. 

All parties to this Agreement warrant and represent that they have the power and authority to enter into this 

36



Agreement in the names, titles, and capacities herein stated and on behalf of any entities, persons, estates, or 
firms represented or purported to be represented by such entity(s), person(s), estate(s), or firm(s) and that all 
formal requirements necessary or required by any stated and/or federal law in order to enter into this 
Agreement have been fully complied with. Further, by entering into this Agreement, neither party hereto 
shall have breached the terms or conditions of any other contract or agreement to which such party is 
obligated, which such breach would have a material effect hereon. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this contract on the following date. 

“Planning Consultant” 
[abc]  

___________________________ 
[Name]  
[Title] 

ATTEST: 

__________________________  

“City” 
City of Dunsmuir, A Municipal Corporation 

_______________________________ 
Dustin Rief 
City Manager 

ATTEST: 

______________________________ 
Wendy Perkins 
Deputy City Clerk 

Exhibit A: Scope of Work 

Exhibit B: Fee Schedule 

Exhibit C: Insurance

37



 

EXHBIT “A” 

Scope of Work 

 

38



 

EXHIBIT “B” 

Fee Schedule 

 
 
  

39



 

EXHIBIT “C” 

Consultant Insurance 

40



 
 
 

INTEGRATED INSURANCE & FINANCIAL SERVICES 

Insurance Requirements in Contracts  2022.1 Version 
1 

 

Insurance Requirements for Professional Services 
Consultant shall procure and maintain for the duration of the contract insurance against claims for 
injuries to persons or damages to property which may arise from or in connection with the 
performance of the work hereunder by the Consultant, its agents, representatives, or employees. 
MINIMUM SCOPE AND LIMIT OF INSURANCE  
Coverage shall be at least as broad as: 

1. Commercial General Liability (CGL):  Insurance Services Office Form CG 00 01 
covering CGL on an “occurrence” basis, including products and completed operations, 
property damage, bodily injury and personal & advertising injury with limits no less than 
$1,000,000 per occurrence. If a general aggregate limit applies, either the general aggregate 
limit shall apply separately to this project/location (ISO CG 25 03 or 25 04) or the general 
aggregate limit shall be twice the required occurrence limit.   

2. Automobile Liability:  Insurance Services Office Form Number CA 0001 covering, Code 
1 (any auto), or if Consultant has no owned autos, Code 8 (hired) and 9 (non-owned), with 
limit no less than $1,000,000 per accident for bodily injury and property damage. 

3. Workers’ Compensation insurance as required by the State of California, with Statutory 
Limits, and Employer’s Liability Insurance with limit of no less than $1,000,000 per 
accident for bodily injury or disease.  
(Not required if consultant provides written verification it has no employees) 

1. Professional Liability (Errors and Omissions) Insurance appropriates to the Consultant’s 
profession, with limit no less than $2,000,000 per occurrence or claim, $2,000,000 
aggregate.   

If the Consultant maintains broader coverage and/or higher limits than the minimums shown 
above, the Entity requires and shall be entitled to the broader coverage and/or the higher limits 
maintained by the contractor. Any available insurance proceeds in excess of the specified 
minimum limits of insurance and coverage shall be available to the Entity. 
Other Insurance Provisions 
The insurance policies are to contain, or be endorsed to contain, the following provisions: 
Additional Insured Status 
The Entity, its officers, officials, employees, and volunteers are to be covered as additional 
insureds on the CGL policy with respect to liability arising out of work or operations performed 
by or on behalf of the Contractor including materials, parts, or equipment furnished in connection 
with such work or operations. General liability coverage can be provided in the form of an 
endorsement to the Contractor’s insurance (at least as broad as ISO Form CG 20 10 11 85 or if not 
available, through the addition of both CG 20 10, CG 20 26, CG 20 33, or CG 20 38; and CG 20 
37 if a later edition is used). 
Primary Coverage 
For any claims related to this contract, the Contractor’s insurance coverage shall be primary 
and non-contributory and at least as broad as ISO CG 20 01 04 13 as respects the Entity, its 
officers, officials, employees, and volunteers. Any insurance or self-insurance maintained by the 

41



 
 
 

INTEGRATED INSURANCE & FINANCIAL SERVICES 

Insurance Requirements in Contracts  2022.1 Version 
2 

 

Entity, its officers, officials, employees, or volunteers shall be excess of the Contractor’s insurance 
and shall not contribute with it. This requirement shall also apply to any Excess or Umbrella 
liability policies. 
Umbrella or Excess Policy 
The Contractor may use Umbrella or Excess Policies to provide the liability limits as required in 
this agreement.  This form of insurance will be acceptable provided that all of the Primary and 
Umbrella or Excess Policies shall provide all of the insurance coverages herein required, including, 
but not limited to, primary and non-contributory, additional insured, Self-Insured Retentions 
(SIRs), indemnity, and defense requirements.  The Umbrella or Excess policies shall be provided 
on a true “following form” or broader coverage basis, with coverage at least as broad as provided 
on the underlying Commercial General Liability insurance. No insurance policies maintained by 
the Additional Insureds, whether primary or excess, and which also apply to a loss covered 
hereunder, shall be called upon to contribute to a loss until the Contractor’s primary and excess 
liability policies are exhausted. 

NOTE to Agencies: Please see the section on The Myth of “Following Form” Excess Limits 
Insurance Policies for additional explanatory information on this very common Excess 
policy problem that needs to be verified and corrected.  

Notice of Cancellation 
Each insurance policy required above shall provide that coverage shall not be canceled, except 
with notice to the Entity. 
Waiver of Subrogation 
Contractor hereby grants to Entity a waiver of any right to subrogation which any insurer of said 
Contractor may acquire against the Entity by virtue of the payment of any loss under such 
insurance.  Contractor agrees to obtain any endorsement that may be necessary to affect this waiver 
of subrogation, but this provision applies regardless of whether or not the Entity has received a 
waiver of subrogation endorsement from the insurer.   
Self-Insured Retentions 
Self-insured retentions must be declared to and approved by the Entity. The Entity may require the 
Contractor to purchase coverage with a lower retention or provide proof of ability to pay losses 
and related investigations, claim administration, and defense expenses within the retention. The 
policy language shall provide, or be endorsed to provide, that the self-insured retention may be 
satisfied by either the named insured or Entity. The CGL and any policies, including Excess 
liability policies, may not be subject to a self-insured retention (SIR) or deductible that exceeds 
$25,000 [fill in the amount for your comfort level for the specific Contractor and job – it could be 
much higher, or in the case of a very small Contractor, you might want it lower] unless approved 
in writing by Entity. Any and all deductibles and SIRs shall be the sole responsibility of Contractor 
or subcontractor who procured such insurance and shall not apply to the Indemnified Additional 
Insured Parties. Entity may deduct from any amounts otherwise due Contractor to fund the 
SIR/deductible. Policies shall NOT contain any self-insured retention (SIR) provision that limits 
the satisfaction of the SIR to the Named. The policy must also provide that Defense costs, including 
the Allocated Loss Adjustment Expenses, will satisfy the SIR or deductible. Entity reserves the 
right to obtain a copy of any policies and endorsements for verification. 

NOTE to Agencies: If the SIR is not paid, there is NO COVERAGE for the Insured or you 
as the Additional Insured or Indemnified Party. Since there is usually a requirement in the 

42



 
 
 

INTEGRATED INSURANCE & FINANCIAL SERVICES 

Insurance Requirements in Contracts  2022.1 Version 
3 

 

SIR provisions on the Contractor’s policy that the Named Insured Contractor (not the 
Agency as an Additional Insured) is the only party allowed to make the payment of the SIR 
in order to trigger coverage, it is necessary to include the Contract provision requirement 
above 

Acceptability of Insurers 
Insurance is to be placed with insurers authorized to conduct business in the state with a current 
A.M. Best’s rating of no less than A:VII, unless otherwise acceptable to the Entity. 
Claims Made Policies (note – should be applicable only to professional liability, see below) 
If any of the required policies provide claims-made coverage:  

1. The Retroactive Date must be shown, and must be before the date of the contract or the 
beginning of contract work. 

2. Insurance must be maintained and evidence of insurance must be provided for at least 
five (5) years after completion of the contract of work. 

3. If coverage is canceled or non-renewed, and not replaced with another claims-made 
policy form with a Retroactive Date prior to the contract effective date, the Contractor 
must purchase “extended reporting” coverage for a minimum of five (5) years after 
completion of work.   

Verification of Coverage 
Contractor shall furnish the Entity with original certificates and amendatory endorsements or 
copies of the applicable policy language effecting coverage required by this clause and a copy of 
the Declarations and Endorsements Pages of the CGL and any Excess policies listing all 
policy endorsements.  All certificates and endorsements and copies of the Declarations & 
Endorsements pages are to be received and approved by the Entity before work commences. 
However, failure to obtain the required documents prior to the work beginning shall not waive the 
Contractor’s obligation to provide them. The Entity reserves the right to require complete, certified 
copies of all required insurance policies, including endorsements required by these specifications, 
at any time. Entity reserves the right to modify these requirements, including limits, based on the 
nature of the risk, prior experience, insurer, coverage, or other special circumstances.  
Subcontractors 
Consultant shall require and verify that all subcontractors maintain insurance meeting all the 
requirements stated herein, and Contractor shall ensure that Entity is an additional insured on 
insurance required from subcontractors. 
Duration of Coverage  
CGL & Excess liability policies for any construction related work, including, but not limited 
to, maintenance, service, or repair work, shall continue coverage for a minimum of 5 years for 
Completed Operations liability coverage. Such Insurance must be maintained and evidence of 
insurance must be provided for at least five (5) years after completion of the contract of work.  
Special Risks or Circumstances 
Entity reserves the right to modify these requirements, including limits, based on the nature of the 
risk, prior experience, insurer, coverage, or other special circumstances. 

43



Exhibit C: Contract Protest Procedures 

All appeals shall be submitted in writing, identifying the action being 
appealed and specifically stating the basis or grounds of the appeal. Appeals 
shall be filed within 10 days following the date of determination or action for 
which an appeal is made and submitted to the City Clerk at 
wperkins@ci.dunsmuir.ca.us  

Unless otherwise agreed upon by the person filing the appeal and the 
applicant, appeal hearings should be conducted within 45 days from the 
date of appeal submittal. Notice of hearing shall be posted in the local 
newspaper, on the city website, and in front of city hall at least 10 days prior 
to the appeals hearing. 

Each appeal shall be considered de novo (anew) and the appeal authority may 
reverse, modify or affirm the decision in whole or in part. In taking its action 
on an appeal, the appeal authority shall state the basis for its action. The 
appeal authority may modify, delete, or add such conditions as it deems 
necessary. The appeal authority may also refer the matter back to the 
original approving authority for further action. The action of the appeal 
authority is final on the date of decision and may not be further appealed. 

 

44

mailto:wperkins@ci.dunsmuir.ca.us


  Page 1  

City of Dunsmuir 
 
 
 

STAFF REPORT 

RE:   Human Resources Consultant Services MEETING DATE:  
April 4, 2024 

 

SUBMITTED BY:   Dustin J. Rief, City Manager 

PURPOSE OF REPORT:        Information only       Discussion      Action Item 

 

WHAT IS BEING ASKED OF THE CITY COUNCIL: To approve the Human Resources Consultant Request for 
Proposals (RFP) for publication 

BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION:  City Council directed city staff to seek Human Resources Consulting services to to 
provide additional support in Human Resources. 

OPTIONS: approve 

Modify and approve 

Do not approve 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

 None  

Comments: Staff recommends approval 

SUGGESTED MOTIONS: 

 

    Attachments: Human Resources Consultant RFP  

  

45



Page 1 of 9 
 

Request for Proposals 
 

On-Call Human Resources Consulting 
Services 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Contact: Dustin Rief, City Manager 
530-435-4822 ext 103 

Preferred: citymanager@ci.dunsmuir.ca.us  
 

Key RFP Dates  
Issued: April 5, 2024 

Proposals Due: May 5, 2024 at 4:00 PM PST 

46

mailto:citymanager@ci.dunsmuir.ca.us


Page 2 of 9 
 

Section 1. Project Overview 

The City of Dunsmuir (hereinafter referred to as the “City”) is seeking proposals from qualified 
firms to enter into a Multi-Year Professional Services Agreement to perform professional and 
technical services to provide human resource consulting services. The intent of this 
solicitation is to obtain a consultant with the experience and expertise necessary to assist in 
the planning, organizing, managing, and direction of the City of Dunsmuir’s human resources 
functions and operations. The Professional Services Agreement is expected to serve for a total 
of five (5) years with an option of an automatic two-year extension based on work 
performance and workflow needs.  

Background 

The City of Dunsmuir is located in Southern Siskiyou County. One of nine incorporated cities, 
Dunsmuir averages approximately 1700 residents over the last decade. Five miles long and an 
average quarter-mile wide, Dunsmuir is set against a mountainous backdrop in the steep-
walled Sacramento River Canyon. A small. Historic downtown and small residential lots give 
the city a rural small-town character. The downtown is home to restaurants, hotels, small 
businesses, community services, and the landmark California Theater. The City of Dunsmuir 
hosts an Amtrak Station with daily service on the Coast Starlight line. The Amtrak station is 
located on the Union Pacific Railroad yard with an active change-out point for Union Pacific 
freight trains.  
The city operates under a City Council-City Manager form of government. The City Manager 
will be the direct contact for the awarded on-call planning and environmental services 
contractor. The City currently employs 17 full time and 40 seasonal or part-time staff. The City 
of Dunsmuir non-managerial staff are represented by the Operating Engineers #3. The City is 
currently in a 3 year union agreement beginning in 2023. 

Scope of Services 

The City is soliciting proposals from qualified, licensed, and insured entities for professional 
and technical services to provide human resource consulting services. Services would include 
recruiting/staffing, employee orientation, employee relations, performance management and 
salary administration, overseeing the termination of employees and analyzing exit interviews, 
as well as compliance with Federal, state, and local laws and regulations related to 
employment, and compliance with internal policies and procedures. The City is seeking a 
proposer who can take a proactive approach in completing the work below and advising the 
City on all aspects of its current practices, while making recommendations for continuous 
improvement. 

Specific Services Requested: 

1. Assume role of human resources manager within the organization 

47



Page 3 of 9 
 

2. Create and update current job descriptions and communicate recommendations 

3. Manager human resources questions from both the City Manager and City Staff 

4. Completion of an evaluation of current human resources practices and 
procedures 

5. Hiring, on-boarding, promotion and separation of employees 

6. Management of employee records in accordance with federal, state, and local 
standards and regulations 

7. Review of personnel policy manual and recommendations for changes 

8. Administration of employee benefits and directing of open enrollment 

9. Administration of leave policies 

10. Review of annual performance review process, including creating new or 
improved forms as necessary, and recommendations for improvement 

11. Handling, tracking, and reporting of employee performance issues, disciplinary 
actions, and employee and manager complaints 

12. Entry and tracking of all status changes such as new hires, terminations, leaves, 
and promotions and more 

13. Assistance with development of staff training programs related to employee 
conduct and soft skills as well as monitoring of completed training programs and 
coaching for supervisors and management, including but not limited to sexual 
harassment, non-discrimination, anti-retaliation, Fair Labor and Standards Act, 
etc. 

14. Regular communication to City Manager of changes affecting labor laws or 
regulations 

15. Recommendation for continuous improvement of human resources policies and 
procedures 

16. Assistance with other tasks or needs as deemed necessary by the City 

17. Provide evaluation reports on new hires and prospective new hires 

Non-essential services 

The City may evaluate certain related non-essential services in order to determine if cost saving 
benefits might be derived with respect to adding these services to the HR consulting services. 

48



Page 4 of 9 
 

Interested proposers may add the following services to their response to the extent that the 
proposer has such capacity and experience. None are a condition of eventual appointment: 

1. Payroll administration 

2. Payroll time keeping 

3. Workers' compensation administration 

To the extent that non-essential services are included in the response, please include in your 
response all of the following specifications relative to these non-essential services described in 
the "Proposal Format Guidelines" section below. 

Note: Presently the City has Gworks as the payroll management system and Workman's Comp 
is presently being handled by the Sedgwick Insurance Services. The selected consultant will 
coordinate with City staff on the items listed above. 

Section 2 RFP Submittal Requirements 

Eligibility 

This RFP is open to all interested firms. Firms must certify in a cover letter that it meets the 
following conditions: 

1. Is not in litigation that may have a significant and adverse impact on the ability to 
perform services for the City of Dunsmuir. 

2. Has the resources, expertise, and commitment to complete all components of the 
project in a timely and competent manner. 

3. City of Dunsmuir requires that the professional who signs the proposal as the project 
manager certify that they will be present at all meetings requested by the staff 
members and will fully participate in the day-to-day management of the contract. 

The proposal should not exceed 30 total written pages (excluding cover letter, proposal cover, 
table of contents, and supplemental information, such as resumes, insurance, and the 
statement of modifications). Supplemental information and appendices should be relevant 
and brief. Proposals shall be organized using the following format: 

1. Cover Letter: Identify the prime consultant and describe any subcontract 
arrangements. Please identify the person who is authorized to negotiate for the team 
and indicate that the proposal represents a firm binding offer for 90 days. The cover 
letter should also summarize the key points of the consulting firms’ interests, 
qualifications, and pertinent areas of expertise.  

2. Key Staff: Identify a single point of contact (project manager) and all key team 
members, including relevant experience. Provide an organization chart of how the key 
staff is structured within the organization and include all specialty sub-consultants that 

49



Page 5 of 9 
 

would be expected to be utilized on the project. 
3. Scope of Services: Description of the services to be offered by the firm and those 

offered by subcontractors typically used by the firm. The proposal must indicate which 
services are provided by whom.  

4. Relevant Experience: List projects completed by the Consultant relevant to the scope 
of services contained herein that have been completed in the last five years. Discuss 
the firm’s uniqueness to best perform these on-call services for the city.  

5. Current Clients: Provide a list of all clients doing business with the Consultant in the 
past 12 months. 

6. Billing Structure: Provide a list of hourly billing rates for each proposed team member. 
Include all direct and indirect expenses and transportation fees. 

7. Statement of Proposed Modification: Attached are the City’s standard Professional 
Services Agreement (PSA) and insurance requirements. If the respondent has any 
modifications to the standard PSA or Insurance requirements, provide a statement of 
proposed modifications and/or exceptions to the PSA. Any modifications not included 
in this Statement may not be considered by the city. 

8. Insurance: Provide a summary of insurance coverage including public liability, 
property damage, workers compensation, automobile, and professional liability. An 
example of the city’s insurance requirements is provided in Exhibit B.  

9. References: Provide three (3) client references relevant to the scope of services listed 
herein. Include names, titles, and current contact information.  

Appendices 

Information considered by proposers to be pertinent to this project, and which has not been 
specifically solicited in any of the aforementioned sections, may be placed in a separate 
appendix section. Proposers are cautioned, however, that this does not constitute an 
invitation to submit large amounts of extraneous materials. Appendices should be relevant 
and brief. 

Non-Discrimination Certification 

By responding to this RFP, proposers represent that they and their subsidiaries do not and will 
not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment on the basis of race, 
religious creed, color, national origin, ancestry, physical disability, mental disability, medical 
condition, genetic information, marital status, sex, gender, gender identity, gender 
expression, age, sexual orientation, or military or veteran status. 

Addenda 

Any changes to the requirements will be made by written addendum to this RFP. Any written 
addenda issued pertaining to this RFP shall be incorporated into the terms and conditions of 
any resulting agreement. The City of Dunsmuir will not be bound to any modifications to or 

50



Page 6 of 9 
 

deviations from the requirements set forth in this RFP as the result of verbal instructions. 
Proposers are responsible for checking the City of Dunsmuir website 
https://www.ci.dunsmuir.ca.us/news for any and all written Addenda related to this RFP. The 
City of Dunsmuir will not distribute Addenda to a mailing list of interested proposers. 

Submittal Procedures 

Proposals must be submitted at or before 5:00 P.M. on July 1, 2022. An electronic copy of 
the proposal in PDF format should be delivered by email to the following address: 
citymanager@ci.dunsmuir.ca.us with the email subject: City of Dunsmuir On-Call Planning 
and Environmental Proposal  

Proposals received after the date and time specified above will not be considered.    

The City of Dunsmuir reserves the right to: 

1. Accept, reject any or all submittals, or any item or part thereof; 
2. Issue subsequent Requests for Proposals; 
3. Alter the Selection Process Dates; 

4. Remedy technical errors in the RFP process; 
5. Request additional information from Proposers and investigate the qualifications of all 

firms under consideration; 
6. Confirm any part of the information furnished by a Proposer; 
7. Obtain additional evidence of managerial, financial, or other capabilities; 
8. Approve or disapprove the use of particular subcontractors; 
9. Negotiate with any, all, or none of the Proposers; 
10. Award a contract to one or more Proposers; 
11. Accept other than the lowest-priced Proposal; 
12. Solicit best and final offers from all of some of the Proposers; 
13. Withdraw this RFP at any time without prior notice, and the City of Dunsmuir makes no 

representations that any contract will be awarded to any Proposer responding to this 
RFP; 

14. Waive informalities and irregularities in Proposals or the selection process. 

Confidentiality of Proposals 

To the extent permitted by law, proposals received shall remain confidential until the contract, 
if any, resulting from this RFP has been finally executed. Thereafter, all information submitted 
in response to this request shall be deemed public record. In the event that the Proposer 
desires to claim portions of its proposal as exempt from disclosure under the California Public 
Records Act, it is incumbent on the Proposer to clearly identify those portions with the word 
“confidential” printed on the lower right-hand corner of the page. City of Dunsmuir will 
consider a Proposer’s request for exemption from disclosure; however, the City of Dunsmuir 

51

https://www.ci.dunsmuir.ca.us/news
mailto:citymanager@ci.dunsmuir.ca.us


Page 7 of 9 
 

will make its decision based on applicable laws. An assertion by the Proposer that the entire 
proposal is exempt from disclosure will not be honored. Firms are advised that the City of 
Dunsmuir does not wish to receive confidential or proprietary information and those proposers 
are not to supply such information except when it is absolutely necessary. If any information or 
materials in any proposal submitted are labeled confidential or proprietary, the proposal shall 
include the following clause: 

[Legal name of proposer] shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless the City of 
Dunsmuir, its officers, agents and employees from and against any request, 
action or proceeding of any nature and any damages or liability of any nature, 
specifically including attorneys’ fees awarded under the California Public 
Records Act (Government Code § 6250 et seq.) arising out of , concerning or in 
any way involving any materials or information in this proposal that [legal 
name of proposer] has labeled as confidential, proprietary or otherwise not 
subject to disclosure as a public record. 

Pre-Contractual Expenses 

The City of Dunsmuir shall not, in any event, be liable for any pre-contractual expenses 
incurred by Proposer in the preparation of its proposal. Proposer shall not include any such 
expenses as part of its proposal. Pre-contractual expenses are defined as expenses incurred by 
Proposer in: 

1. Preparing its proposal in response to this RFP; 
2. Submitting that proposal to the City of Dunsmuir; 
3. Negotiating with the City of Dunsmuir any matter related to this proposal; or 
4. Any other expenses incurred by Proposer prior to date of award, if any of the 

Agreement. 

Insurance and Agreement Provisions 

The Proposer must satisfy the insurance requirements of the City (Exhibit B). Objections to 
any provisions must be identified in the proposal. If no objections are made, this will signify 
that the insurance requirements and agreement are acceptable as written. Unless otherwise 
authorized by the City of Dunsmuir, the selected consultant will be required to execute an 
agreement with the City of Dunsmuir for the services requested. If agreement on terms and 
conditions acceptable to the City of Dunsmuir cannot be achieved, or if, after reasonable 
attempts to negotiate such terms and conditions, it appears that an agreement will not be 
possible, as determined at the sole discretion of the City of Dunsmuir, the City of Dunsmuir 
reserves the right to retract any notice of intent to award and proceed with awards to other 
consultants, or not award at all. 

Lobbying 

Any consulting firm submitting a proposal, or a party representing a firm, shall not influence 

52



Page 8 of 9 
 

or attempt to influence any member of the evaluation committee, any member of a city 
council within the City of Dunsmuir, or any employee of the City, with regard to the 
acceptance of a proposal. Any party attempting to influence the RFP process through ex-parte 
contact shall be subject to rejection of their proposal. 

Section 3. Evaluation and Award 

An Evaluation Committee will review all proposals received. The committee includes City of 
Dunsmuir staff and may include outside personnel. The City of Dunsmuir staff will conduct an 
initial review of the proposals for general responsiveness and compliance with the 
requirements of this RFP. Proposals failing to satisfy the requirements or which are 
inadequately responsive will not be considered. 

After the initial responsiveness review, the committee members will read the proposals 
separately then convene to discuss and review the written proposals. Each member of the 
selection panel will then evaluate each proposal using the criteria identified below to arrive at 
a “proposal score” in the range of 0 to 100 for each proposal. A list of top ranked proposals will 
be developed based upon the totals of each committee member’s score for each proposal. 

The Evaluation Committee will review all proposals submitted on time. The committee will 
evaluate the proposals and select based on the following criteria: 

• Demonstrated understanding of the requested work and responsiveness to the 
request for proposal. 

• Firm expertise and competence including experiences processing current 
development projects, experience with CEQA and complex EIR’s. 

• Experience with advanced planning such as General Plan, Master Plans, Specific Plans, 
and Housing Element Updates. 

• Excellent written and verbal communication skills. 

• Professional qualifications and experience of individuals likely to be assigned to the 
city. 

• Proposed compensation rates 

• Reference recommendations 

During the evaluation period, the City of Dunsmuir may interview some or all of the proposing 
firms. The interview may consist of a short presentation by the Proposer, after which the 
evaluation committee will ask questions related to the firm’s proposal and qualifications. 

The City of Dunsmuir reserves the right to select a consultant based solely on written 
submittals and not convene oral interviews. If oral interviews are necessary, the selected 
Proposer will be requested to make a formal presentation. The Evaluation Committee will 

53



Page 9 of 9 
 

recommend one consultant following any interviews. The Committee’s recommendation will 
be reviewed by the City Manager before proceeding to the City Council for action. 

Selection will be based on a “best value” analysis. The City of Dunsmuir reserves the right to 
select the proposal which in its sole judgment best meets the needs of the City of Dunsmuir. 

Award 

Acceptance of a proposal or other material during the selection process does not constitute a 
contract and does not obligate the City of Dunsmuir to award funds. Funding is subject to final 
contract approval by the City Council of the City of Dunsmuir. The City of Dunsmuir reserves 
the right to reject any and all responses without penalty and to act in the best interest of 
the City of Dunsmuir. The City of Dunsmuir will evaluate the proposals received and will 
submit the proposal considered to be the most competitive to the City, for consideration and 
selection. The City of Dunsmuir may also negotiate contract terms with the selected Proposer 
prior to award, and expressly reserves the right to negotiate with several Proposers 
simultaneously and , thereafter, to award a contract to the Proposer offering the most 
favorable terms to the City of Dunsmuir. 

Negotiations may or may not be conducted with Proposers; therefore, the proposal 
submitted should contain Proposer’s most favorable terms and conditions, since the selection 
and award may be made without discussion with any Proposer. 

Notification of Award 

Proposers who submit a proposal in response to this RFP shall be notified by email regarding 
the firm who will be recommended for award of the contract. Such notification will be made 
at least seven (7) days before the date the contract is awarded. 

Section 4 Protests 

Bid protests for contracts awarded for professional services shall be submitted and 
responded to in accordance with the requirements noted in Exhibit C. 

Section 5 Tentative Schedule 

The following is a tentative project schedule and milestone requirements for the project. The 
City of Dunsmuir reserves the right to adjust the schedule. 

Issued: April 5, 2024 

Proposals Due: May3, 2024 at 4:00 PM PST 

Award Approval: June 20, 2024 City Council Meeting 

54



Page 1 

CITY OF Dunsmuir 

STAFF REPORT 

RE:   SB1 (RMRA road maintenance and rehabilitation account) Funding – 
Resolution 2024-03 Project List 

MEETING DATE: 
4/4/24 

SUBMITTED BY: Blake Michaelsen, Finance Director 

PURPOSE OF REPORT:  Information only  Discussion  Action Item 

WHAT IS BEING ASKED OF THE CITY COUNCIL: 

The City Council is being asked to adopt Resolution 2024-03 to establish a project list to receive SB1 (RMRA Road 
Maintenance and Rehabilitation Account) funding in budget year 24/25. 

BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 

Senate Bill 1 (SB1), the Road Repair and Accountability Act of 2017 was passed to address the significant multi-modal 
transportation funding shortfalls statewide and include accountability and transparency provisions.  
Per Streets and Highways Code Section 2034(a)(1), cities must submit to the Commission a proposed project list-adopted 
resolution each fiscal year prior to receiving fiscal year monthly apportionments from the State Controller’s Office. 
These funds are intended to be prioritized for expenditure on basic road maintenance and rehabilitation projects, and on 
critical safety projects.  

The Public Works Director has reviewed and approves of the project list shown in the resolution. 

OPTIONS: 

Adopt the attached resolution as is. Or include another project(s). 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

 None  Yes  Budgeted Item?  Yes   No 

Budget Adjustment Needed?   Yes    No If yes, amount of appropriation increase: 

Affected fund(s):  General Fund  Water OM Fund  Sewer OM Fund  Other: SB1 Funds – Fund 58 

Comments: The SB1 funding is expected to be received and reflected in FY 24/26 budget. 

SUGGESTED MOTIONS: 

Move to adopt Resolution No. 2024-03 to adopt a project list to receive SB1 funding in FY 2024/2025. 

 Attachments: Resolution No. 2024-03,  Resolution adopting a list of projects for fiscal year 2024-25 
funded by SB1: The Road Repair and Accountability Act of 2017 

55



RESOLUTION NO. 2024-03 

RESOLUTION ADOPTING A LIST OF PROJECTS FOR CITY OF DUNSMUIR FOR FISCAL YEAR 2024-25 
FUNDED BY SB 1: THE ROAD REPAIR AND ACCOUNTABILITY ACT OF 2017 

WHEREAS, Senate Bill 1 (SB 1), the Road Repair and Accountability Act of 2017 (Chapter 5, 
Statutes of 2017) was passed by the Legislature and Signed into law by the Governor in April 2017 to 
address the significant multi-modal transportation funding shortfalls statewide; and  

WHEREAS, SB 1 includes accountability and transparency provisions that will ensure the 
residents of our City are aware of the projects proposed for funding in our community and which 
projects have been completed each fiscal year; and 

WHEREAS, the City must adopt by resolution a list of projects proposed to receive fiscal year 
funding from the Road Maintenance and Rehabilitation Account (RMRA), created by SB 1, which must 
include a description and the location of each proposed project, a proposed schedule for the project’s 
completion, and the estimated useful life of the improvement; and 

WHEREAS, the City, will receive an estimated $43,635 in RMRA funding in Fiscal Year 2024-25 
from SB 1; and 

WHEREAS, this is the eighth year in which the City is receiving SB 1 funding and will enable the 
City to continue essential road maintenance and rehabilitation projects, safety improvements, repairing 
and replacing aging bridges, and increasing access and mobility options for the traveling public that 
would not have otherwise been possible without SB 1; and  

WHEREAS, the City has received public input into our community’s transportation priorities/the 
project list; and  

WHEREAS, the City used staff knowledge, public input, and a Pavement Management System to 
develop the SB 1 project list to ensure revenues are being used on the most high-priority and cost-
effective projects that also meet the communities priorities for transportation investment; and  

WHEREAS, the funding from SB 1 will help the City maintain and rehabilitate approximately 2 
miles of streets/roads throughout the City this year and many similar projects into the future; and 

WHEREAS, the 2018 California Statewide Local Streets and Roads Needs Assessment found that 
the City streets and roads are in an “poor” condition and this revenue will help us increase the overall 
quality of our road system and over the next decade will bring our streets and roads into a “less poor” 
condition; and  

WHEREAS, the SB 1 project list and overall investment in our local streets and roads 
infrastructure with a focus on basic maintenance and safety, investing in complete streets 
infrastructure, and using cutting-edge technology, materials and practices, will have significant positive 
co-benefits statewide. 

56



NOW, THEREFORE IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED, ORDERED AND FOUND by the City Council of the City of 
Dunsmuir, State of California, as follows: 

1. The foregoing recitals are true and correct.

2. The following list of newly proposed projects will be funded in-part or solely with Fiscal Year
2024-25 Road Maintenance and Rehabilitation Account revenues:

Project Title: Crack seal project and Dunsmuir Curbs & Sidewalks Rehabilitation 
Project Description: Contract with Siskiyou County or other private entity or Rent a crack 
seal/fill machine to prolong the life of Dunsmuir streets according to the locations stated 
below and repair cracked and damaged curbs and sidewalks by demolition and rebuild of curb 
and sidewalk or through pouring new concrete in cracked areas. 
Project Location: Dunsmuir Ave from Wood St to Cedar St; Cedar street along Sheriff hill; 
Dunsmuir Ave north of Shasta Retreat; eastern portion of Grey St; River Ave south of 
Tauhindauli Park. 
Estimated Project Schedule: Start (07/24) – Completion (06/25)  
Estimated Project Useful Life: 3-5 years 

Project Title: Pedestrian Safety project 
Project Description: Purchase solar powered flashing light pedestrian crossing signals 
Project Location: Intersection of Florence Loop and Dunsmuir Ave; and Crossing on Mott Road 
near Hedgecreek falls trailhead 
Estimated Project Schedule: Start (07/24) – Completion (06/25)  
Estimated Project Useful Life: battery 3-5 years, signs and lights 10 years 

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Dunsmuir, State of California this 4th 
day of April, 2024, by the following vote:  

AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSENT: 
ABSTAIN: 

_______________________________ 
Michael Clarno, Mayor 

ATTEST: ____________________________ 
 Wendy Perkins, Deputy City Clerk 

57


	Planning-OnCall-RFP-Item Combined Document.pdf
	Section 1. Project Overview
	Scope of Services
	Under the direction of the Planning Director or City Manager, the consultant will provide the range of expertise necessary to carry out the normal functions of a professional planner and planning department. All services provided by the consultant sha...
	Task and services to be assigned by city staff include, but not limited to:
	General Department Work
	 Provide qualified and experienced staff to provide planning services and address planning and environmental-related staff questions;
	 Provide application processing services, including meetings with applicants; preparing plans for completeness and compliance with local and state guidelines development standards; prospering staff reports and making presentations; and coordinating w...
	 Assist with updates and creation of long-term and short-terms plans including General Plan updates, ordinance updates, and master plans to meet city and state goals;
	 Attend City Council, Planning Commission, and other meetings as necessary to provide information and analysis to the City’s decision-makers;
	 Provide development processing, plan and map checking, and on-site inspection for all new development activity, when needed; and
	 Assist with planning special projects which may include grant preparation, grant management, and project management.
	Training
	 Provide planning and environmental training for city staff, City Council, and Planning Commission to familiarize these parties with planning and environmental regulation, laws, and best practices.
	Environmental Services
	 Prepare minor environmental determinations as required to comply with state and federal law for public and private projects being processed by the city;
	 Environmental clearance and permitting for city projects as needed;
	 Provide environmental on-site inspections and field surveys;
	 Provide oversight, management, and preparation of all environmental documents to be prepared by outside consultants; and
	 Provide long-term monitoring and reporting to ensure compliance with mitigation monitoring programs.
	Housing Services
	 Assist with development of housing policies and programs, implementation of housing programs and development of affordable housing projects.
	Section 2 RFP Submittal Requirements
	Section 3. Evaluation and Award
	Section 4 Protests
	Section 5 Tentative Schedule
	ADP8C94.tmp
	1. PARTIES:
	2. SCOPE OF SERVICES:
	3. PAYMENT:
	4. TIME FOR PERFORMANCE:
	5. STANDARD OF PERFORMANCE:
	6. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR:
	7. SUCCESSOR AND ASSIGNS:
	8. SUBCONTRACTORS:
	9. PLANNING CONSULTANT'S EMPLOYEES:
	10. FAIR EMPLOYMENT PRACTICES:
	11. WORKPLACE CONDUCT AND BEHAVIOR:
	12. OWNERSHIP OF WORK PRODUCT:
	13. DELIVERABLES:
	14. CHANGES IN WORK:
	15. CONFIDENTIALITY:
	16. PROHIBITED INTEREST:
	17. CONFLICT OF INTEREST:
	18. INDEMNIFICATION:
	19. INSURANCE
	20. ACCIDENT REPORTS:
	21. COVENANT AGAINST CONTINGENT FEES:
	22. TERMINATION OR ABANDONMENT:
	23. SUCCESSORS OR ASSIGNS:
	24. DAMAGE OR LOSS OF EQUIPMENT OR FACILITIES:
	25. ELECTRONIC COMMUNICATIONS:
	26. LAWS AND VENUE:
	27. ADMINISTRATION:
	28. ADVICE OF COUNSEL:
	29. INDEPENDENT REVIEW:
	30. TIME:
	31. ASSIGNMENT OF ANTI-TRUST CLAIMS:
	32. TAXES:
	33. SEVERABILITY.
	34. AMENDMENTS.
	35. WAIVER.
	36. COMPLETENESS OF INSTRUMENT.
	37. SUPERSEDES PRIOR AGREEMENTS.
	38. ATTORNEY’S FEES.
	39. COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS.
	40. COUNTERPARTS.
	41. OTHER DOCUMENTS.
	42. AUTHORITY.

	Exhibit B Insurance Requirements.pdf
	Insurance Requirements for Professional Services

	ADP2D5B.tmp
	Exhibit C: Contract Protest Procedures


	ADPAB34.tmp
	Section 1. Project Overview
	Scope of Services
	Section 2 RFP Submittal Requirements
	Section 3. Evaluation and Award
	Section 4 Protests
	Section 5 Tentative Schedule




